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July 31, 2008   
 

The Honorable ROBERT C. BYRD 
President Pro Tempore of the Senate, Washington, D.C. 20510 
The Honorable NANCY PELOSI 
Speaker of the House of Representatives, Washington, D.C. 20515 
 
DEAR SENATOR BYRD AND SPEAKER PELOSI: 
 
     We are pleased to transmit the record of our June 19, 2008 public hearing on “The 
Memorandum of Agreement Between the United States and China Regarding Prison Labor 
Products.”  The Floyd D. Spence National Defense Authorization Act (amended by Pub. L. 
No. 109-108, section 635(a)) provides the basis for this hearing, stating that the Commission 
shall examine “…the degree of non-compliance by the People's Republic of China with 
agreements between the United States and the People's Republic of China on prison labor 
imports… and United States enforcement policies with respect to such agreements.” The 
agreements in question are a 1992 Memorandum of Agreement (MOU) that prison-made 
products will not be exported from China to the United States, and a subsequent 1994 
Statement of Cooperation (SOC) that more explicitly defines the investigation and resolution 
procedures for alleged cases of prison-made goods.  
 
     The hearing was organized into two panels. The first panel focused on China’s prison 
labor system, commonly termed the laogai (“reform through labor”), and on the export of 
Chinese prison-made products to the United States. The panel featured testimony by Mr. 
Harry Wu, the Executive Director of the Laogai Research Foundation and himself a former 
political prisoner in the laogai system. It also featured testimony by Mr. Gary Marck, a 
businessman who professes first-hand knowledge of Chinese prison-made imports entering 
the United States, and Mr. Daniel Ellis of the law firm of Lydy & Moan in Toledo, Ohio, 
who is Mr. Marck’s legal counsel.  
 
     Mr. Wu offered a harsh assessment of the efficacy of the 1992 MOU and the subsequent 
1994 SOC, stating that “…these bilateral agreements have done little to uphold United States 
law or to promote the respect of human rights as a key element of U.S. foreign policy. 
Rather, they have only served to provide the PRC with diplomatic cover that it can use to 
defend itself in the face of criticism regarding the export of prison labor products.” He went 
on to describe a long history of Chinese government obstruction of the implementation of the 
provisions of the MOU and SOC, including denials and lengthy delays in acting on U.S. 
government requests to inspect alleged prison factory facilities in accordance with the 
stipulations of these agreements. He also discussed a June 2008 report by the Laogai 
Research Foundation, titled Laogai Forced Labor Camps Listed in Dun & Bradstreet 
Databases. Mr. Wu stated that the report identifies 314 different prison facilities that are 
linked to commercial enterprises, thereby indicating a significant economic role for many of 
the prisons of the laogai network. 
 
  
 
 
     Following this, Mr. Marck and Mr. Ellis offered a case study setting out their views of 
how Chinese prison-made products enter the United States in violation of U.S. law, and of 
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the ways in which this can affect American businesses. Mr. Marck, who operates a 
wholesaling company that markets drinkware products, is involved in ongoing litigation with 
a competitor whom Mr. Marck has claimed was underselling him by importing ceramic 
coffee mugs produced at a Chinese prison factory. Mr. Marck conducted a private 
investigation that he said identified the Luzhong Prison in Shandong Province as the point of 
origin for the mugs in question, and he further identified a company named Shandong Zibo 
Maolong Ceramic Factory as a “front” company for the prison’s products. Mr. Marck 
claimed that this unfair competition had both negatively impacted his business and forced 
him to spend significant time and money pursuing his investigation and litigation.  
 
     Responding to questions from the Commissioners, Mr. Marck asserted that he had 
received very little assistance from agencies of the U.S. government, opining that U.S. 
Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) of the Department of Homeland Security had 
insufficient resources and authority inside China to assist effectively with such cases. Mr. 
Marck and Mr. Ellis recommended that the burden of proof be shifted to U.S. importers, 
requiring them to certify that their imported products were not produced by prison labor. He 
further recommended that companies be granted a “private right of action” to pursue alleged 
customs violations by their competitors. Finally, he recommended that falsifications of 
product origin labeling be pursued and prosecuted as violations of the Lanham Act of 1947, 
which prohibits trademark infringement, trademark dilution, and false advertising. The 
Commission will conduct further research on these and other matters related to prison labor 
imports – particularly the recommendation of Mr. Ellis that Congress grant a “private right of 
action” – in order to more fully understand the complexities of these issues prior to providing 
policy recommendations in its annual report later this year.  
 
     The second panel examined the state of Chinese government compliance with the 
provisions of the 1992 MOU and 1994 SOC, and whether any changes to those instruments 
might be needed. This panel featured the testimony of Mr. James Ink, Deputy Assistant 
Director of the Office of International Affairs, ICE. (ICE is the federal agency that has been 
given primary responsibility for working with Chinese officials to investigate and resolve 
alleged cases of prison labor goods exported to the United States, although Customs and 
Border Protection (CBP) would be the responsible agency for actually issuing detention 
orders against any manufacturers identified as being involved in such activity.) The 
Commission also was very interested in having a representative of the U.S. State Department 
speak to the diplomatic aspects of this issue. Regrettably, however, despite repeated 
invitations extended through both informal and formal channels, the State Department 
declined to send a representative to participate in the hearing. 
 
     Although he did not directly characterize it as such, both Mr. Ink’s prepared statement and 
his answers to Commissioners’ questions revealed that Chinese government cooperation with 
the United States to fulfill the requirements of the MOU and SOC pertaining to prison labor 
products has been very poor. The 1994 SOC stipulates that “…if the United States 
government, in order to resolve specific outstanding cases, requests a visit to a suspected 
facility, the Chinese government will, in conformity with Chinese laws and regulations and 
in accordance with the MOU, arrange for responsible United States diplomatic mission 
officials to visit the suspected facility within 60 days of the receipt of a written request.” 
However, Mr. Ink indicated that there are currently 13 outstanding requests by ICE officials 
for on-site inspections of alleged prison labor facilities, dating back to 1994. He also 



indicated that contacts between representatives of China’s Ministry of Justice and ICE 
representatives in China have been sporadic in recent years. He stated that contacts halted in 
2003 in the wake of the outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS), resumed 
from 2004 to 2006, stopped again for two years, and only resumed in June 2008. In response 
to Commissioners’ questions, Mr. Ink also acknowledged that ICE maintains no central 
database of alleged prison labor product cases, but stated that local ICE offices maintain 
greater awareness of such issues within their geographical areas of concern. When asked 
directly whether he regards the prison labor MOU and SOC as effective, Mr. Ink responded 
that they could be if the 60-day timeframe for site inspections were actually observed, and he 
recommended continued diplomatic engagement as the best means to pursue progress on this 
issue. When asked whether or not he believes that private business interests should be 
granted a private right of action – as recommended by Mr. Ellis – Mr. Ink demurred, but 
suggested that private sector businesspeople could provide information to ICE that ICE could 
use to take action through government channels.   
 
     The prepared statements of the hearing witnesses can be found on the Commission’s 
website at www.uscc.gov, and the complete hearing transcript also will be made available on 
the website. Members of the Commission are available to provide more detailed briefings. 
We hope the information from this hearing will be helpful as the Congress continues its 
assessment of U.S.-China relations.  In its 2008 Annual Report that will be submitted to 
Congress in November 2008, the Commission will examine in greater depth these and the 
other issues enumerated in its statutory mandate. 
 

Sincerely yours, 

               
                       Larry M. Wortzel                                          Carolyn Bartholomew 
                            Chairman                                               Vice Chairman 
 
cc: Members of Congress and Congressional Staff 
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THE MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 
THE U.S. AND CHINA REGARDING PRISON LABOR 

PRODUCTS 
 

_________ 
 
 

THURSDAY, JUNE 19,  2008 
 
 U.S.  CHINA ECONOMIC AND SECURITY REVIEW 
COMMISSION 
 
     Washington,  D.C.  
 
 
 
 
 The Commiss ion met  in  Room 418,   Russel l  Senate  Off ice  
Bui ld ing a t  8 :55 a .m. ,  Chairman Larry  M.  Wortze l  and Commiss ioner  
Peter  Videnieks  (Hear ing Cochai rs ) ,  pres id ing.   
   
OPENING STATEMENT OF COMMISSIONER PETER VIDENIEKS 

HEARING COCHAIR 
 
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   We'd  l ike  to  s tar t  the  hear ing  
now.   The hear ing is  going to  be  on the  Memoranda of  Agreement  
Between the  Uni ted  Sta tes  and China  Regarding Pr ison Labor  Products .  
 I 'd  l ike  to  welcome everybody here  and to  extend a  specia l  note  
of  thanks  to  Chairman Akaka and members  of  h is  s taf f  of  the  Senate  
Veterans  Affa i rs  Commit tee  for  providing us  wi th  the  use  of  the i r  
hear ing room for  today 's  proceedings .  
 The cont inuing impor ta t ion  in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  of  products  
produced by pr ison labor  remains  a  topic  of  ser ious  concern  to  many in  
both  Congress  and the  broader  publ ic .   Al though formal  agreements  
have  been made between the  U.S.  and Chinese  governments  to  s top the  
expor t  of  pr ison labor  goods  to  the  U.S. ,  the  prac t ice  nonetheless  
cont inues .  
 Off ic ia ls  who deal  wi th  pr ison labor  i ssues  in  the  U.S.  Embassy 
in  China  have recent ly  ident i f ied  a  number  of  products  produced for  
re ta i l  sa le  by  pr ison labor ,  inc luding ar t i f ic ia l  f lowers ,  Chr is tmas  
decora t ions ,  shoes  and garments .  
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 At  leas t  some of  these  i tems are  making thei r  way in to  the  U.S.  
market  and two of  our  wi tnesses  here  today wi l l  i l lus t ra te  a  case  s tudy 
of  how i l l ic i t  pr ison labor  goods  are  making the i r  way to  American 
s tore  shelves .   This  prac t ice  not  only  provides  a  powerful  f inancia l  
incent ive  for  off ic ia ls  who contro l  pr ison labor  fac i l i t ies  to  cont inue  
and expand such product ion,  but  a lso  hur ts  legi t imate  U.S.  
bus inesspeople  who are  t ry ing to  p lay  by the  ru les .  
 One of  the  main  reasons  tha t  informat ion on Chinese  pr ison labor  
goods  i s  l imi ted  i s  due  to  the  fac t  tha t  the  Chinese  government  t rea ts  
such informat ion as  a  s ta te  secre t .   The Chinese  government  a lso  has  a  
very  ques t ionable  record  of  compl iance  wi th  i t s  agreements  re la ted  to  
pr ison labor  products .  
 U.S.  off ic ia ls  a t tempt ing to  implement  the  provis ions  of  these  
agreements  have  descr ibed China  as  a  chal lenging opera t ing  
environment  and have of ten  found the i r  Chinese  counterpar ts  to  be  
e i ther  unresponsive  or  ac tual ly  obs t ruct ive .  
 Today,  we wi l l  be  examining the  overa l l  s ta te  of  the  Chinese  
government  compl iance  wi th  the  provis ions  f rom the  1992 and 1994 
agreements  re la ted  to  pr ison labor  products ,  and seeking grea ter  c lar i ty  
on the  i ssue  as  we consider  the  pol icy  recommendat ions  tha t  we wi l l  
present  to  Congress  la ter  in  the  year .  
 I  would  l ike  to  in t roduce  the  panel is t s ,  and the  ques t ions  wi l l  be  
addressed in  tha t  order .    
 Mr .  Harry  Wu is  an  American ac t iv is t  for  human r ights  in  the  
People 's  Republ ic  of  China .   He 's  now a  c i t izen  of  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  
and Mr.  Wu spent  19  years  in  Chinese  labor  camps for  which he  
popular ized the  term " laogai ."   He es tabl ished the  Laogai  Research 
Foundat ion,  a  nonprof i t  research and publ ic  educat ion organiza t ion .  
 Second would  be  Mr.  Gary G.  Marck.   Mr.  Marck is  Pres ident  of  
G.G.  Marck & Associa tes ,  an  importer  and dis t r ibutor  of  dr inkware  
products  wi th  off ices  and warehouses  in  Toledo,  Ohio  and Mira  Loma,  
Cal i fornia .   He has  worked in  th is  indust ry  for  over  30 years  and holds  
a  number  of  U.S.  pa tents  for  dr inkware  re la ted  products .  
 Next  i s  Mr.  El l i s ,  Danie l  T .  El l i s .   He is  a  par tner  in  the  law f i rm 
of  Lydy & Moan,  Ltd . ,  located  in  Sylvania ,  Ohio .   His  prac t ice  
inc ludes  commercia l  l i t iga t ion  involving contrac t  d isputes ,  unfa i r  
compet i t ion  and in ternat ional  t rade  i ssues  for  both  defendants  and 
pla in t i f fs .    
 He 's  a lso  ac t ive ly  involved in  c iv i l  r ights  and const i tu t ional  
i ssues  re la ted  to  an  individual ' s  r ight  to  bear  arms under  the  Ohio  and 
U.S.  Const i tu t ions .   He regular ly  pract ices  in  s ta te  as  wel l  as  federa l  
cour ts .  
 I 'd  l ike  to  now turn  to  Mr.  Wu to  begin  h is  tes t imony.  
 



  

 

 
 

 
 

STATEMENT OF MR. HARRY WU, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
THE LAOGAI RESEARCH FOUNDATION, WASHINGTON, D.C.  

 
 MR.  WU:  Thank you.   I t  has  been 16 years  s ince  the  government  
of  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  commit ted  i t se l f  to  ensur ing compl iance  wi th  i t s  
own t rade  law wi th  respect  to  the  People 's  Republ ic  of  China .  A 
Memorandum of  Unders tanding,  MOU, s igned in  1992,  and a  Sta tement  
of  the  Coopera t ion,  SOC,  s igned in  1994,  were  in tended to  provide  the  
Uni ted  Sta tes  government  wi th  the  tools  tha t  i t  needs  to  guarantee  tha t  
products  made by pr ison or  o ther  forced labor  would  not  be  impor ted  
in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  f rom the  PRC,  in  accordance  wi th  Sect ion  307 of  
the  Tar i f f  Act  of  1930,  which prohibi ts  the  impor ta t ion  of  any products  
made by pr ison labor  in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .  
 Unfor tunate ly ,  in  my opinion,  these  b i la tera l  agreements  have  
done l i t t le  to  uphold  Uni ted  Sta tes  law or  to  promote  respect  for  
human r ights  as  a  key e lement  of  U.S.  fore ign pol icy .  
 Rather ,  they have only  served to  provide  the  PRC with  
d ip lomat ic  cover  tha t  i t  can  use  to  defend i t se l f  in  the  face  of  cr i t ic ism 
regarding the  expor t  of  pr ison labor  products .  
 The MOU and SOC es tabl ish  agreed-upon procedures  for  the  
Uni ted  Sta tes  to  inves t iga te  a l legat ions  tha t  such products  have  been 
impor ted  in to  the  country  f rom China .   S ince  the  beginning of  the  
f i sca l  year  2005,  the  task  of  inves t iga t ing  and enforc ing laws and 
regula t ions  prohibi t ing  the  impor ta t ion  of  forced labor  products  in to  
the  Uni ted  Sta tes  has  fa l len  under  the  jur isdic t ion  of  the  U.S.  
Immigrat ion and Customs Enforcement ,  ICE.  
 ICE can reques t  tha t  China  inves t iga te  pr ison labor  a l legat ions  
per ta in ing to  expor ts  to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .   I t  can  reques t  for  U.S.  
Embassy off ic ia ls  to  v is i t  pr isons  a l leged to  produce  products  for  
expor t  in  order  to  ver i fy  tha t  any such goods  are  being expor ted  to  the  
Uni ted  Sta tes .  
 As  of  2005,  there  were  three  off icers  ass igned to  the  ICE At taché  
in  Bei j ing  who were  charged wi th  conduct ing such inves t iga t ions .  
 I t  i s  the  duty  of  the  U.S.  Customs and Border  Protec t ion,  CBP,  to  
i ssue  enforcement  ac t ions  regarding suspected  impor ta t ion  of  pr ison 
labor  products .   The CBP can enter  Withhold  Release  Orders ,  more  
commonly refer red  to  as  de tent ion  orders ,  when there  i s  informat ion 
avai lable  tha t  reasonably ,  but  not  conclus ively ,  indica tes  tha t  impor ted  
merchandise  has  been produced wi th  forced or  indentured labor .  
 Subsequent ly ,  i f  an  inves t iga t ion  concludes  tha t  there  i s  probable  
cause  tha t  a  c lass  of  merchandise ,  or ig inat ing  f rom a  par t icular  
manufacturer ,  fac i l i ty  or  d is t r ibutor ,  i s  produced wi th  forced or  
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indentured labor ,  the  CBP may issue  a  f inding and ent ry  of  sa id  
merchandise  i s  denied .  
 I  want  to  g ive  an  example:   the  most  recent  inves t iga t ion  tha t  
was  inc luded in  the  repor t  i s  a  s i te  v is i t  in  Apr i l  2005 conducted  a t  the  
Fuyang Genera l  Machinery  Factory .   U.S.  Embassy off ic ia ls  had f i rs t  
reques ted  to  v is i t  th is  s i te  in  1995,  ten  years  ear l ie r .   Sure ly ,  s i te  
v is i t s  conducted  a  decade af ter  informat ion sugges t ing  a  v io la t ion  had 
occurred  was  f i rs t  rece ived,  and negot ia ted  wi th  Chinese  author i t ies  
wel l  in  advance  of  the  ac tual  da te  of  the  v is i t ,  cannot  be  expected  to  
y ie ld  any meaningful  informat ion tha t  could  be  used to  make a  
de terminat ion  wi th  respect  to  the  a l legat ions .  
 Not  surpr is ingly ,  no  evidence  of  expor ts  to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  of  
products  manufactured by pr ison labor  was  found dur ing any of  the  
pr ison s i te  v is i t s .   So  th is  has  remained an  open case .  
 S ince  i t s  founding in  1992,  the  Laogai  Research Foundat ion has  
a t tempted to  moni tor  the  s ta te  of  affa i rs  in  China 's  Laogai  fac i l i t ies ,  
inc luding the  scope of  the i r  economic  ac t iv i ty .   "Laogai"  l i te ra l ly  
means  “reform through labor ,”  and a l though the  Chinese  s topped us ing 
the  word in ternal ly  in  1994,  the  evidence  tha t  my foundat ion has  
gathered sugges ts  tha t  forced labor  i s  as  much a  par t  of  the  pr ison 
sys tem today as  i t  ever  was .  
 We found that  more  than 1 ,000 Laogai  camps exis t  in  China  
today.   And recent ly ,  the  Laogai  Research Foundat ion conducted a  
research  projec t  to  assess  the  degree  to  which products  made wi th in  
the  Laogai  are  expor ted  by China .    
 So we compared our  Laogai  Handbook wi th  two onl ine  Dun & 
Bradst ree t  da tabases- -Dun & Bradst ree t  c la ims to  be  the  wor ld 's  
leading source  of  commercia l  informat ion and ins ight  on  bus inesses- -
and we found  a  to ta l  of  314 separa te  ent r ies  for  Laogai  camps in  the  
Dun & Bradst ree t  da tabases .   Those  314 ent r ies  in  the  Dun & 
Bradst ree t  da tabases  represent  256 di f ferent  Laogai  camps,  or  
approximate ly  25 percent  of  the  to ta l  number  of  the  Laogai  camps 
ident i f ied  as  of  2006.  
 A to ta l  of  65  ent r ies  in  the  Dun & Bradst ree t  da tabases  conta in  
the  word "pr ison"  in  the i r  name.   And the  314 ent r ies  in  the  Dun & 
Bradst ree t  da tabases  inc lude  Laogai  camps in  28 of  31  province  level  
d iv is ions .  
 The 314 ent r ies  for  Laogai  camps found in  the  Dun & Bradst ree t  
da tabases  represent  72  d i f ferent  products  and/or  product  ca tegor ies .  
 So I  ask  tha t  th is  Commiss ion remind our  government ,  the  Uni ted  
Sta tes  government ,  tha t  progress  in  th is  mat ter  should  not  be  t rea ted  as  
a  pol i t ica l  i ssue  but  as  a  legal  i ssue .   The law is  c lear  in  th is  mat ter :  
products  produced by pr ison labor  are  prohibi ted  f rom being impor ted  
in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  regardless  of  the  ramif ica t ion  tha t  enforcement  
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of  the  prohibi t ion  may have on re la t ions  wi th  o ther  countr ies .   We can 
even go to  cour t  to  sue  the  American government ,  because  they did  not  
fo l low the  law.   I t  i s  not  a  pol i t ica l  i ssue .   
 So  as  a  f i rs t  s tep ,  I  recommend that  the  MOU between the  Uni ted  
Sta tes  and the  PRC be revoked,  as  i t  has  been proven to  be  to ta l ly  
ineffec t ive  in  providing enforcement  of  Uni ted  Sta tes  law.  
 Thank you.  
 [The s ta tement  fo l lows:] 1 
   
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Thank you.  
 Mr.  Marck.  
 

STATEMENT OF MR. GARY G.  MARCK, PRESIDENT 
G.G.  MARCK & ASSOCIATES,  INC.  

TOLEDO, OHIO 
 
 MR.  MARCK:  Members  of  the  Commiss ion and s taf f ,  I  would  
l ike  to  thank you for  th is  oppor tuni ty  to  d iscuss  the  Uni ted  Sta tes '  
re la t ionship  wi th  the  People 's  Republ ic  of  China  as  i t  re la tes  to  the  
impor ta t ion  of  forced labor  products .  
 My view ref lec ts  the  exper iences  of  an  American impor ter  of  
ceramic  products  wi th  f i rs t -hand day- to-day knowledge of  the  ceramic  
indust ry  in  China  and as  a  par t  owner  of  two ceramic  fac tor ies  in  
China .   Addi t ional ly ,  I  f requent ly  t ravel  to  the  manufactur ing  fac i l i t ies  
in  China  to  address  i ssues  re la ted  to  the  product ion and impor ta t ion  of  
ceramic  products  in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .  
 Speci f ic  to  th is  hear ing,  I  have  knowledge re la ted  to  the  
impor ta t ion  of  ceramic  coffee  mugs  tha t  were  made in  whole  or  par t  
wi th  pr ison labor .  
 G.G.  Marck & Associa tes  was  founded in  1986 to  provide  
products  to  the  dr inkware  decora t ing  indust ry ,  mainly  sold  as  
promot ional  products .   Marck has  off ices  and warehouses  in  Toledo,  
Ohio  and Mira  Loma,  Cal i fornia .   Marck is  a  leading wholesa ler  of  
ceramic  g lass ,  s ta in less  s tee l  and plas t ic  products  to  the  dr inkware  
decora t ing  indust ry  in  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  wi th  over  2 ,000 cus tomers .  
 Marck sources  products  domest ica l ly  as  wel l  as  impor ts  f rom 
China ,  India ,  Thai land,  Taiwan,  Colombia ,  Turkey and France .  
 In  2004,  in  an  ef for t  to  avoid  i t s  loss  of  i t s  source  of  ceramic  
products ,  Marck bought  a  minor i ty  in teres t  in  two Chinese  ceramic  
fac tor ies .  
 Dur ing th is  hear ing,  I  would  l ike  to  h ighl ight  the  d i f f icul t ies  
faced by U.S.  companies  tha t  comply wi th  the  laws of  the  Uni ted  

 
1 Click here to read the prepared statement of Mr. Harry Wu 

http://www.uscc.gov/hearings/2008hearings/transcripts/08_06_19_trans/wu.pdf
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States  by impor t ing  products  f rom factor ies  tha t  do  not  use  forced or  
pr ison labor  in  the  product ion of  the i r  products .  
 Many fore ign expor ters  and some U.S.  impor ters  ignore  U.S.  law 
to  gain  a  compet i t ive  advantage ,  a lbei t  an  un unlawful  one .   The law 
abiding companies  must  choose  to  exi t  the  bus iness  because  the  pr ice  
in  which the  product  i s  so ld  cannot  be matched by lawful  means  or  jo in  
in  the  unlawful  impor ta t ion  of  products  f rom pr ison fac tor ies .  
 Addi t ional ly ,  the  Chinese  and American agencies  responsible  for  
enforc ing the  laws and regula t ions  have  not  taken adequate  measures  
to  ensure  tha t  a l l  compet i tors  have  met  these  laws and regula t ions .    
 Ul t imate ly ,  wi thout  the  ass is tance  and in tervent ion of  the  
responsible  Chinese  and U.S.  governmenta l  agencies ,  law abiding 
companies ,  both  in  the  U.S.  and in  China ,  wi l l  cont inue  to  go out  of  
bus iness  and cease  to  exis t .  
 The loss  of  these  law-abiding companies  impacts  the  Uni ted  
Sta tes  through i t s  loss  of  tax  revenue and American workers  because  of  
the  loss  of  jobs .  
 Marck has  knowledge f rom a  var ie ty  of  sources  inc luding 
eyewitness  evidence  tha t  ceramic  coffee  mugs  produced a t  the  Luzhong 
Pr ison of  Shandong Province  are  being expor ted  to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .  
 S ince  i t  i s  agains t  Chinese  laws for  pr ison-made goods  to  be  
expor ted ,  the  goods  made a t  Luzhong need to  be  expor ted  by another  
company.   The Shandong Zibo Maolong Ceramic  Factory  i s  the  f ront  
for  Luzhong.   Deta i l s  of  our  inves t iga t ions  have  been provided to  the  
Commiss ion.  
 There  are  two separa te  pr ison camps for  Luzhong.   One is  for  
hard  core ,  long- term pr isoners ,  and the  o ther  i s  what  i s  refer red  to  as  
Re-educat ion through Labor  Faci l i ty .   I t  may be  semant ics ,  but  the  
Chinese  do not  ca l l  th is  a  pr ison.   I t  i s  the  Re-educat ion through Labor  
Faci l i ty  tha t  houses  pol i t ica l  and o ther  pe t ty  cr iminals  tha t  a re  
rehabi l i ta ted  through work.  
 I t  i s  th is  Re-Educat ion through Labor  Faci l i ty  tha t  makes  the  
ceramic  coffee  mugs .   Maolong is  a  smal l  fac i l i ty  jus t  outs ide  the  main  
gate  of  Luzhong.   I t  has  l imi ted  capaci ty  to  manufacture  mugs  and I  do  
not  be l ieve  i t  has  ever  made mugs .   I t  i s  the  f ront  company used by 
Luzhong to  expor t  i t s  mugs  to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .  
 In  order  to  ge t  these  goods  to  the  U.S. ,  there  has  to  be  an  
impor ter .   A number  of  U.S.  impor ters  are  impor t ing  mugs  made a t  
Luzhong and expor ted  by Maolong.   Most  of  these  impor ters  are  aware  
of  the  Luzhong-Maolong re la t ionship  but  choose  to  ignore  the  fac t  tha t  
pr ison labor  was  used to  make the i r  mugs  because  of  the  pr ice  
advantage  they receive .  
 This  re la t ionship  unlawful ly  benef i t s  the  three  par t ies  involved.   
Maolong makes  prof i t  f rom the  expor t  of  the  Luzhong mugs.   Shandong 
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Province  benef i t s  as  they make prof i t  f rom the  pr ison.   Las t ly ,  the  U.S.  
impor ter  tha t  purchases  the  mugs  f rom Maolong benef i t s  f rom the  low 
cos t  pr ison-made mugs .  
 The losers  are  the  Chinese  and U.S.  companies  tha t  compete  wi th  
these  pr ison-made goods ,  u l t imate ly  caus ing the  loss  of  jobs .   China  
a lso  loses  as  the  pr isons  do not  pay taxes  as  do  the  voluntary  labor  
ceramic  fac tor ies .  
 So  once  Maolong dr ives  a l l  the  o ther  ceramic  fac tor ies  in  China  
out  of  bus iness ,  they wi l l  have  no tax  income.   Each year  the  number  
of  v iable  manufactur ing fac i l i t ies  decl ines  because  they can ' t  se l l  the i r  
products  a t  the  same pr ice  as  the  pr ison-made products  and s t i l l  remain  
prof i table .  
 F inal ly ,  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  loses  tax  revenue di rec t ly  re la ted  to  
the  c los ing of  bus inesses  tha t  cannot  compete  wi th  pr ison-made goods .  
 I t  i s  Marck 's  be l ief  tha t  by  increas ing agency and pr ivate  par ty  
remedies  avai lable ,  there  wi l l  be  s igni f icant  increase  in  the  effec t ive  
enforcement  of  exis t ing  laws and regula t ions  prohibi t ing  the  ent ry  of  
pr ison-made goods  in to  the  U.S.  market .  
 Marck submit ted  sugges t ions  and concerns  to  th is  Commiss ion 
on March 18,  2008,  in  a  wr i t ten  s ta tement  about ,  quote ,  "China 's  
Expanding Global  Inf luence:  Fore ign Pol icy  Goals ,  Pract ices ,  and 
Tools ."   A copy has  been provided.  
 Addi t ional ly ,  Marck appeared before  the  In ternat ional  Trade  
Commiss ion 's  inves t iga t ion ,  quote ,  "China:  Government  Pol ic ies  
Affect ing U.S.  Trade  in  Selec ted  Sectors ,"  tes t i fy ing to  the  effec ts  of  
pr ison labor  on i t s  bus iness  and how impor ta t ion  of  pr ison-made goods  
amounts  to  an  unlawful  government  subsidy.  
 Marck s t rongly  favors  the  recommendat ions  made by th is  
Commiss ion in  i t s  May 3 ,  2002 le t te r  to  the  Senate  Finance  Commit tee ,  
sugges t ing  tha t  enforcement  would  be  s igni f icant ly  enhanced by:  
 One,  requir ing  the  impor ter  of  record  to  cer t i fy  tha t  goods  were  
not  made by pr ison labor ;  
 Two,  by b locking impor ts  f rom faci l i t ies  where  inspect ions  by 
U.S.  Customs were  not  a l lowed wi th in  60 days  of  the  reques t  to  
inspect ;  
 Three ,  by  mainta in ing a  l i s t  of  suspected  companies  to  make 
avai lable  to  U.S.  impor ters  so  they could  avoid  impor t ing  products  
f rom these  companies ;  and 
 Four th ,  requir ing  tha t  bond be  pos ted  i f  a  suspected  company is  
used.  
 Addi t ional ly ,  Marck would  suggest  the  fo l lowing:  
 One,  g ive  domest ic  companies  the  abi l i ty  to  enforce  the  
prohibi t ion  on impor ta t ion  of  pr ison or  forced labor  goods  in to  the  
Uni ted  Sta tes ;  
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 Two,  require  tha t  the  name of  the  fac tory  tha t  produces  the  
product  be  on Customs paperwork.  Current ly ,  a  t rading company can 
be  l i s ted  as  the  expor ter ,  and there  i s  no  way to  know where  the  
products  were  ac tual ly  produced;  
 Third ,  i f  the  impor ter  of  record 's  cer t i f ica t ion  i s  chal lenged,  a  
sh i f t  of  burden to  the  impor ter  to  de termine  tha t  the  fac tory  producing 
the  product  was  not  us ing forced labor  in  the  product ion of  the  
products  and require  i t  to  ass is t  in  any inspect ion of  the  manufactur ing 
fac i l i ty  by an  independent  moni tor ing agency.  
 Without  swif t  and c lear  ac t ion  by the  Uni ted  Sta tes  Congress ,  
American companies  wi l l  cont inue  to  go out  of  bus iness  and American 
workers  wi l l  lose  the i r  jobs .  
 Thank you again  for  th is  oppor tuni ty .   I  look forward to  
answer ing your  ques t ions .  
 [The s ta tement  fo l lows:]  
 

Prepared Statement  of  Mr.  Gary G.  Marck,  Pres ident  
G.G.  Marck & Associates ,  Inc .  

Toledo,  Ohio 
 

Members of the Commission and Staff, I would like to thank you for this opportunity to discuss the United 
States’ Relationship with the Peoples Republic of China as it relates to the Importation of Forced Labor 
Products. My view reflects the experiences of an American Importer of Ceramic Products with first-hand, 
day-to-day knowledge of the ceramic industry in China and as a part owner in two ceramic factories in 
China.   Additionally, I frequently travel to the manufacturing facilities in China to address issues related to 
the production and importation of ceramic products into the United States. Specific to this Hearing, I have 
knowledge relating to the importation of ceramic coffee mugs that were made in whole or part with prison 
labor. 
 
 
G.G. Marck & Associates, Inc. (“Marck”) was founded in 1986 to provide products to the drinkware 
decorating industry, mainly sold as promotional products.  Marck has offices and warehouses in Toledo, 
Ohio and Mira Loma, California. Marck is a leading wholesaler of ceramic, glass, stainless steel and plastic 
products to the drinkware decorating industry in the USA, with over 2000 customers. Marck sources 
products domestically as well as imports from China, India, Thailand, Taiwan, Columbia, Turkey and 
France. In 2004, in an effort to avoid its loss of its source of ceramic products, Marck bought a minority 
interest in two Chinese ceramic factories. 
 
During this hearing, I would like to highlight the difficulties faced by U.S. Companies that comply with the 
laws of the United States by importing products from factories that do not use forced or prison labor in the 
production of their products. Many foreign exporters and some U.S. importers ignore U.S. laws to gain a 
competitive advantage, albeit an unlawful one. The law abiding companies must choose to exit the business 
because the price in which the product is sold cannot be matched by lawful means or join in the unlawful 
importation of products from prison factories. Additionally the Chinese and American agencies responsible 
for enforcing the laws and regulations have not taken adequate measures to ensure that all competitors have 
met those laws and regulations. Ultimately, without the assistance and intervention of the responsible 
Chinese and U.S. governmental agencies, law abiding companies both in the U.S. and in China will 
continue to go out of business and cease to exist. The loss of these law abiding companies impacts the 
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Unites States through its loss of tax revenue and American workers because of the loss of jobs. 
 
Marck has knowledge, from a variety of sources, including eyewitness evidence, that ceramic coffee mugs 
produced at the Luzhong Prison of Shandong Province (“Luzhong”) are being exported to the U.S. Since it 
is against Chinese Laws for prison made goods to be exported, the goods made at Luzhong need to be 
exported by another company. The Shandong Zibo Maolong Ceramic Factory (“Maolong”) is the “front” 
for Luzhong. Details of our investigations have been provided to the Commission. 
 
There are two separate prison camps for Luzhong. One is for hard core, long term prisoners and the other is 
what is referred to as a Re-education thru Labor Facility (RTL). It may be semantics, but the Chinese do 
not call this a prison. It is a Re-Education through Labor Facility that houses political and other petty 
criminals that are rehabilitated through work. It is this RTL facility that makes the coffee mugs.  
 
Maolong is a small facility just outside the main gate of Luzhong. It has limited capacity to manufacture 
mugs. I do not believe it has ever made mugs. It is the “front” company used by Luzhong to export its 
mugs to the U.S. In order to get those goods to the U.S. there has to be an importer. A number of U.S. 
importers are importing mugs made at Luzhong and exported by Maolong. Most of these importers are 
aware of the Luzhong-Maolong relationship but chose to ignore the fact that prison labor was used to make 
their mugs because of the price advantage they receive. 
 
This relationship unlawfully benefits the three parties involved. Maolong makes profit from the exports of 
the Luzhong mugs. Shandong Province benefits as they make profits from the prison (RTL). Lastly the 
U.S. importers that purchase the mugs from Maolong benefit from the low cost prison made mugs.  
 
The losers are the Chinese and U.S. companies that compete with these prison made goods, ultimately 
causing the loss of jobs. China also loses as the prisons do not pay taxes as do the voluntary labor ceramic 
factories, so once Maolong drives all the other ceramic factories in China out of business they will have no 
tax income. Each year the number of viable manufacturing facilities decline because they can’t sell their 
product at the same price as the prison made product and still remain profitable.  Finally, the United States 
loses tax revenue directly related to the closing of businesses that can’t compete with prison made goods. 
 
It is Marck’s belief that by increasing agency and private parties remedies available, there will be a 
significant increase in the effective enforcement of existing laws and regulations prohibiting the entry of 
prison made goods into the U.S. market. Marck submitted suggestions and concerns to this Commission on 
March 18, 2008 in a written statement about “China’s Expanding Global Influence: Foreign Policy Goals, 
Practices and Tools”, a copy has been provided. Additionally Marck appeared before the International 
Trade Commission’s Investigation; “China: Government Policies Affecting U.S. Trade in Selected 
Sectors” testifying to the effects of prison labor on its business and how importation of prison made goods 
amounts to an unlawful government subsidy.  
 
Marck strongly favors the recommendations made by this Commission in its May 3, 2002 letter to the 
Senate Finance Committee, suggesting that enforcement would be significantly enhanced by: 
 

1) Requiring the importer of record to certify that goods were not made by prison labor; 
 
2) By blocking imports from facilities where inspections by U.S. Customs (CBP) were not 
allowed within 60 days of the request to inspect; 
 
3) By maintaining a list of suspected companies to make available to U.S. importers so they could 
avoid importing products from those companies; and 
 



  

 

 
 

4) Requiring that bond be posted if a suspected company is used. 
 
Additionally Marck would suggest the following: 
 

1) Give domestic companies the ability to enforce the prohibition on importation of prison or 
forced labor goods into the United States.  

 
2) Require that the Name of the Factory that produced the product be on Customs Paperwork. 

Currently a Trading Company can be listed as the Exporter and there is no way to know 
where the products were actually produced. 

 
3) If the importer of record’s certification is challenged, shift the burden of proof to the importer 

to demonstrate that the factory producing the product was not using forced labor in the 
production of the product and require it to assist in any inspection of the manufacturing 
facility by an independent monitoring agency.  

 
Without swift and clear action by the United States Congress, American companies will continue to go out 
of business and American workers will continue to loose their jobs. 
 
Thank you again for this opportunity and I look forward to answering any of your questions. 
 
 
COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Thank you.  
 Mr.  El l i s ,  p lease .   I  forgot  to  g ive  you the  guidel ines .   I t ' s  
roughly  seven minutes .  
 

STATEMENT OF MR. DANIEL T.  ELLIS,  PARTNER 
LYDY & MOAN, LTD.,  TOLEDO, OHIO  

  
 MR.  ELLIS:   That  wi l l  jus t  make me ta lk  fas ter .   Good morning.  
 Members  of  the  Commiss ion and s taf f ,  I  apprecia te  th is  oppor tuni ty  to  
d iscuss  the  Uni ted  Sta tes '  re la t ionship  wi th  the  People 's  Republ ic  of  
China  as  i t  re la tes  to  the  impor ta t ion  of  forced or  pr ison-made goods  
in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  and the  d i f f icul t ies  faced by law-abiding 
companies  tha t  comply wi th  the  laws of  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  by  refus ing 
to  impor t  products  made in  whole  or  par t  by  forced or  pr ison labor .  
 My comments  predominant ly  re la te  to  Marck & Associa tes '  
a t tempt  to  inves t iga te  the  unlawful  impor ta t ion  of  ceramic  products  
made by forced labor  in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  and i t s  e ffor ts  to  s top  the  
prac t ice  so  tha t  the  compet i t ive  commercia l  marketplace  i s  not  los t .  
 My s ta tements  ref lec t  the  exper ience  of  Marck & Associa tes  over  
the  pas t  three  years  in  i t s  a t tempt  to  sh ine  l ight  on  the  ceramic  
products  impor ted  f rom Maolong and Luzhong re la ted  pr ison fac i l i t ies .  
 Mr .  Marck expla ined tha t  Shandong Zibo Maolong Ceramic  
Factory  i s  the  f ront  for  Luzhong Pr ison of  Shandong Province .   
Luzhong is  a  s ta te-owned pr ison fac i l i ty  tha t  produces  70 mi l l ion  
p ieces  of  ceramic  products  per  year .   The impor ta t ion  of  ceramic  

- 10 -



 

 

 
 

- 11 -

 
products  manufactured a t  a  pr ison labor  fac i l i ty  such as  Luzhong 
offers  a  pr ice  advantage  tha t  cannot  be  met  by  companies  complying 
wi th  the  laws of  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .  
 The inabi l i ty  of  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  and legi t imate  companies  to  
s top  the  impor ta t ion  of  pr ison-made goods  undermines  the  long- term 
s tabi l i ty  of  companies  and the  compet i t ive  marketplace  in  America .  
 In  2005,  af ter  Marck conf i rmed that  one  of  i t s  compet i tors  was  
engaging in  unfa i r  bus iness  prac t ices  inc luding impor t ing  ceramic  
products  produced by pr ison labor ,  they f i led  a  lawsui t  capt ioned G.G.  
Marck & Associa tes ,  Inc .  v .  James Peng,  Photo  U.S.A.  Corporat ion,  
Nor th  American Inves tments  Corporat ion,  and Photo  USA Elect ronic  
Graphics ,  Inc . ,  in  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  Dis t r ic t  Cour t  for  the  Nor thern  
Dis t r ic t  of  Ohio  in  the  Western  Divis ion.  
 One of  the  compet i t ive  advantages  obta ined by the  defendants  
was  they obta ined the  ceramic  products  f rom Maolong/Luzhong below 
the  pr ice  in  which Marck could  obta in  and impor t  a  s imi lar  product  
f rom a  legi t imate  commercia l  fac tory .  
 Al though the  cour t  awarded damages  to  Marck in  excess  of  $1 .5  
mi l l ion  inc luding sanct ions  for  defendants '  wi l l fu l  v io la t ion  of  a  
permanent  in junct ion  re la ted  to  var ious  unfa i r  t rade  prac t ices ,  i t  
concluded Marck had not  met  i t s  evident iary  burden of  proof  tha t  
ceramic  products  in t roduced in to  evidence  came f rom the  Luzhong 
Pr ison.  
 The causal  connect ion  tha t  the  mugs  in t roduced in to  evidence  
f rom Maolong were  manufactured a t  Luzhong was  f rus t ra ted  by 
Chinese  c lass i f ica t ion  of  the  informat ion as  a  s ta te  secre t .   Any 
wi tness  brought  to  es tabl ish  the  connect ion would  have been subjec t  to  
being accused of  d isc los ing c lass i f ied  informat ion and would  have 
faced cr iminal  prosecut ion.  
 On August  9 ,  2006,  Marck a lso  made a  formal  reques t  to  the  U.S.  
Customs and Border  Protec t ion  to  conduct  an  inves t iga t ion  in to  what  i t  
be l ieved was  the  i l legal  impor ta t ion  of  ceramic  products  manufactured 
a t  the  Maolong/Luzhong pr ison fac i l i ty  in  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  f rom 
China  for  commercia l  use  and resa le  in  v io la t ion  of  19 U.S.C.  Sect ion 
1307.   That  sec t ion  ac tual ly  prec ludes  the  impor ta t ion  of  pr ison-made 
goods  in  whole  or  par t .   
 Marck is  aware  tha t  the  U.S.  Customs and Enforcement  has  
reques ted  informat ion f rom the  Minis t ry  of  Jus t ice ,  the  People 's  
Republ ic  of  China ,  under  the  Memorandum of  Unders tanding on thei r  
re la t ionship  between Maolong and Luzhong so  tha t  Customs can 
inves t iga te  and wi thhold  the  re lease  of  the  pr ison-made goods  i f  
warranted .  
 As  of  the  date  of  th is  hear ing,  i t  i s  Marck 's  unders tanding tha t  
the  informat ion has  not  been provided to  ICE.  
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 On Apri l  5 ,  2007,  Marck f i led  a  thi rd-par ty  complain t  wi th  the  
Fai r  Labor  Associa t ion ,  a l leging a  code of  conduct  v io la t ion  a t  the  
Maolong ceramic  fac tory .   Marck a lso  asked tha t  the  FLA ini t ia te  a  
cer t i f ied  independent  fac tory  audi t  to  conf i rm the  re la t ionship  between 
Maolong and Luzhong Pr ison.  
 Marck out l ined the  fac ts  suppor t ing  i t s  content ion  tha t  Maolong 
is  the  f ront  for  the  Luzhong Pr ison.   The FLA decl ined to  accept  
Marck 's  complain t  for  review for  procedura l  reasons ,  unre la ted  to  the  
mer i t s  of  Marck 's  complain t ,  because  according to  i t s  char ter ,  a  
Category  C l icensee  i s  required  to  own or  opera te  the  fac tory .  
 Despi te  the  FLA's  concluding that  a t  leas t  one  Category  C 
l icensee  was  being suppl ied  by Maolong and Luzhong,  i t  de termined 
the  complain t  d id  not  meet  the  requirements  for  in i t ia t ing  a  th i rd-par ty  
complain t .  
 The FLA did  inform the  FLA's  univers i ty  l ia ison,  Heera l  
Coleman,  so  she  could  be  in  contac t  wi th  re levant  Univers i t ies  and 
Col leges .  
 I f  Congress  or  American companies  are  re ly ing upon the  FLA to  
moni tor  fac tor ies  in  China  to  comply wi th  i t s  code of  conduct  re la t ing  
to  pr ison labor ,  the i r  t rus t  i s  sadly  misplaced.  
 Addi t ional ly ,  Marck reques ted  the  Workers  Rights  Consor t ium to  
conduct  an  independent  audi t  of  the  Maolong/Luzhong Pr ison to  
evaluate  whether  they are  re la ted  ent i t ies .   The WRC has  conducted  an  
inves t iga t ion  but  has  not  ye t  re leased i t s  repor t .  
 I t  i s  our  be l ief  tha t  the  WRC wil l  u l t imate ly  conclude  tha t  
Maolong and Luzhong Pr ison are  re la ted  ent i t ies .  
 As  a  d i rec t  consequence  of  Marck 's  ef for ts  to  show the  
re la t ionship  between Maolong and Luzhong Pr isons ,  the  markings  on 
the  car tons  of  impor ted  ceramic  products  are  being fa ls i f ied  to  obscure  
the  fac tory  in  which the  product  has  been manufactured.  
 Marck has  observed car tons  tha t  do  not  ident i fy  the  fac tory  
which produced the  ceramic  products ,  car tons  in  which the  Chinese  
Commodi ty  Inspect ion Bureau number  does  not  match the  fac tory  
labeled  on the  car ton,  or  the  use  of  the  CCIB numbers  of  fac tor ies  no 
longer  opera t ing .  
 The CCIB number  i s  a  requirement  of  impor ta t ion  of  ceramics  
under  the  Memorandum of  Unders tanding between the  Food and Drug 
Adminis t ra t ion  and the  People 's  Republ ic  of  China 's  Adminis t ra t ion  
per ta in ing to  safe ty  of  ceramic  tableware .  
 I t  a l so  appears  tha t  t rading companies  located  in  China  are  
in tent ional ly  mis label ing  the  products  so  Maolong is  no  longer  
ident i f ied  as  the  manufacturer  or  the  expor ter .  
 Marck s t rongly  favors  increased enforcement  ef for ts  and makes  
the  fo l lowing recommendat ions  in  whole  or  par t  to  s t rengthen the  
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United  Sta tes '  ab i l i ty  to  prevent  the  impor ta t ion  of  pr ison-made goods:  
 Prohibi t ion  of  the  impor ta t ion  of  any good produced a t  a  fac tory  
ident i f ied  in  the  Laogai  Handbook by the  Laogai  Research Foundat ion 
unless  the  impor ter  of  record  comes forward wi th  independent  
cer t i f ica t ion  tha t  i t  i s  not  a  fac tory  u t i l iz ing  pr ison labor ;  
 Require  the  impor ter  of  record  to  cer t i fy  tha t  goods  were  not  
made wi th  pr ison labor ;  
 Prohibi t  the  impor ta t ion  of  any goods  f rom a  fac tory  tha t  U.S.  
Customs is  not  permit ted  to  inspect  wi th in  60 days  of  a  reques t  or  tha t  
the  Minis t ry  of  Jus t ice ,  People 's  Republ ic  of  China ,  has  not  cer t i f ied  i s  
not  a  f ront  for  a  pr ison or  re la ted  to  a  forced labor  fac i l i ty  wi th in  60 
days ;  
 Grant  to  companies  a  pr iva te  r ight  of  ac t ion  to  in i t ia te  and 
enforce  cus tom regula t ions  inc luding the  prohibi t ion  on the  
impor ta t ion  of  goods  produced wi th  pr ison labor .   Require  the  
in i t ia t ing  par ty  to  not i fy  the  U.S.  Customs and Enforcement  Agency of  
the  f i l ing  of  the  complain t  and provide  the  agency wi th  the  r ight  to  
take  over  the  case  wi th in  60 days  of  f i l ing;  
 Require  the  U.S.  Customs and Immigrat ion  Enforcement  Agency 
to  provide  a  governmenta l  wi tness  to  cer t i fy  tha t  a  fac tory  i s  or  i s  not  
re la ted  to  a  pr ison fac tory  in  any c iv i l  law sui t ;  
 After  a  pre l iminary  or  pr ima fac ie  showing tha t  a  fac tory  u t i l izes  
pr ison labor ,  sh i f t  the  presumpt ion and burden of  proof  in  any c iv i l  
lawsui t  to  the  impor ter  to  demonst ra te  tha t  the  fac tory  i s  not  re la ted  to  
a  pr ison fac tory;  
 Require  a l l  manufactur ing fac i l i t ies  to  be  ident i f ied  on the  
car ton and the  impor t  documenta t ion  provided to  Customs so  tha t  i t  
can  be  checked agains t  the  Laogai  Handbook or  any other  appl icable  
l i s t  of  pr ison fac tor ies  in  China;  
 Def ine  use  of  forced pr ison labor  in  whole  or  par t  as  an  unfa i r  
bus iness  prac t ice  as  a  mat ter  of  law under  the  Lanham Act .    
 Domest ic  and fore ign companies  impor t ing  products  in  the  
Uni ted  Sta tes  through lawful  means  need immedia te  ass is tance  to  
preserve  the  compet i t ive  marketplace  and s tay  in  bus iness .  
 American workers  are  compet i t ive  wi th  fore ign workers  i f  the  
compet i t ive  market  i s  not  undermined by the  impor ta t ion  of  goods  
manufactured  by pr ison labor  fac i l i t ies .   Swif t  and decis ive  ac t ion  i s  
required  to  preserve  American jobs  and domest ic  companies  by 
level ing  the  compet i t ive  marketplace .  
 Thank you for  the  oppor tuni ty  to  h ighl ight  some of  the  
d i f f icul t ies  be ing faced by domest ic  companies  in  the i r  e f for t  to  
compete  in  the  g lobal  marketplace .  
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 [The s ta tement  fo l lows:] 2 
 

PANEL I:   Discuss ion,  Quest ions  and Answers  
 
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Thank you very  much.   
 I 'd  l ike  to  open up wi th  some ques t ions .   Commiss ioner  Wessel ,  
you have a  ques t ion?  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   Yes ,  I  do .   Thank you for  being 
here ,  gent lemen.   Harry ,  i t ' s  good to  see  you again .  
 Your  case  s tudy provides  some enormous informat ion for  us  and 
i t ' s  apprecia ted .   I 'd  l ike  to  unders tand.   Your  se l f -help  approach is  
laudable  but  expensive .   I  assume you are  not  a  For tune  500 company.  
 I  don ' t  know that ,  but  thus  the  resources  you have  to  expend to  t ry  and 
protec t  your  company 's  in teres ts  are  scarce  and many others  I 'm sure  
are  not  wi l l ing  to  expend s imi lar  amounts .  
 Can you te l l  me what  k ind of  coopera t ion you 've  got ten  f rom 
your  own government  as  you 've  done this?   What  pr ior i ty  do you th ink 
our  own Sta te  Depar tment  p laces  on enforc ing the  agreement  tha t ,  in  
fac t ,  i t  negot ia ted  and,  as  Mr.  Wu indica ted ,  ten  years  la ter  one  of  the  
inves t iga t ions  was  done which was  supposed to  have been done wi th in  
60 days?  
 Give  us  some f lavor  of  how you 've  had to  go about  th is  se l f -help  
measure ,  p lease .  
 MR.  MARCK:  As  they say,  you have to  have pr inciples  and 
somet imes  you get  burned by them,  but  i t  has  been f rus t ra t ing  for  a  
number  of  years  t ry ing to  comply wi th  the  laws of  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  
and a t  the  same t ime having your  compet i t ion  being able  to  h ide  
behind th is  memorandum.  
 I t ' s  not  enforceable  and i t ' s  not - -we had di f f icul ty ,  as  Mr.  El l i s  
has  sa id ,  proving in  a  cour t  of  law something tha t  i t ' s  hearsay.   You 
can ' t  br ing  the  par t ies .   You can ' t  go  to  the  pr ison,  e t  ce tera .  
 We are  looking a t  i t  f rom survival .   We wi l l  eventual ly  fa i l  i f  we 
a l l  we have-- i f  our  only  compet i t ion  i s  forced labor  in  China  or  any 
country .   I t  doesn ' t  mat ter  what  country  i t  i s .   No voluntary  labor  can 
ac tual ly  compete  wi th  pr ison labor .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   But  i f  you could ,  a lso ,  the  ques t ion  
of  what  ass is tance  your  own government  has  g iven you?   When you 've  
come wi th  th is  informat ion,  have you found any ass is tance  f rom Sta te  
Depar tment  or  o ther  ent i t ies?  
 MR.  MARCK:  No,  no,  very  l i t t le .   We have gone to  U.S.  
Customs,  and I 've  ac tual ly  gone to  Bei j ing  and met  wi th  the  ICE agent  
in  charge .   Okay.   And they,  I  th ink they are  f rus t ra ted  too .    They 

 
2 Click here to read the prepared statement of Mr. Daniel T. Ellis 
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don ' t  have  the  abi l i ty  to  inves t iga te  these  i ssues .   So--  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   They 've  put  i t  way down the  
pr ior i ty  l i s t .  
 MR.  MARCK:  Yes ,  and I  th ink ter ror ism and other  i ssues  are  
h igher  on the  agenda,  and I  have  no objec t ion  to  tha t ,  but  these  are  
i ssues  tha t  need to  be  addressed,  but  U.S.  Customs is  now Customs and 
Border  Protec t ion  and i t ' s  Immigra t ion  and Customs.   I t ' s  a l l  meshed 
together .   Homeland Secur i ty  and 9/11 issues  and chi ld  pornography 
issues  have  a  h igher  ra t ing  tha t  ceramic  coffee  mugs  being made wi th  
forced labor  in  China .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   I  unders tand.   Mr.  El l i s ,  as  a  legal  
mat ter - -and i t ' s  been some t ime s ince  I 've  looked back through the  
Tar i f f  Act  and a l l  i t s ,  the  antecedents- -an  impor ter  i s  a  broad term and 
not  subjec t  to  a  very  d iscre te  def in i t ion .  
 I f  an  individual ,  a  U.S.  individual ,  goes  over ,  for  example ,  to  the  
Olympics  th is  summer  and were  to  purchase  an  i tem on the  s t ree t ,  one  
of  these  mugs ,  one  of  the  mascots  or  anything e lse  tha t  might  be  the  
product  of  pr ison labor ,  my unders tanding reading through a l l  of  the  
mater ia ls  tha t  we 've  been provided in  the  bas ic  s ta tu te  i s  tha t  
individual ,  in  fac t ,  could  be  in  v io la t ion  of  the  law for  impor t ing  a  
product  made f rom pr ison labor .  
 Would  tha t  be  your  reading as  wel l?  
 MR.  ELLIS:   I  th ink that  you have to  have a  commercia l  purpose .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   Okay.  
 MR.  ELLIS:   So i f  you jus t  bought  i t  and brought  i t  back,  I  th ink 
you 'd  be  okay.   But  you don ' t  have  to  look that  far .   Al l  you have to  do 
is  go  down to  the  coffee  shop down here  and look a t  the  mugs  in  there ,  
and i f  you look a t  the  bot tom of  the  mug,  i t  says  "Decora ted  in  the  
Uni ted  Sta tes ."  I t  has  no country  of  or ig in  mark .   I t  v io la tes  the  Uni ted  
Sta tes  law.  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   You 're  saying in  our  own shops  
here?  
 MR.  ELLIS:   Yes ,  i f  you jus t  go  r ight  downsta i rs  where  I  got  
coffee  th is  morning.  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   So the  U.S.  Senate  might  be  in  
v io la t ion  a t  th is  point .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   They are .   There ' s  no  country  of  or ig in  marked that  
d isc loses  to  the  u l t imate  purchaser  of  the  mug,  which is  whoever  
bought  tha t  mug,  where  tha t  mug came f rom.  
 The inference  i s ,  because  i t ' s  decora ted  in  the  Uni ted  Sta tes ,  i t  
came f rom somewhere  e lse ,  but  where?   S ince  i t ' s  a  ceramic  coffee  
mug,  i f  the  FDA had to  go t race  back the  cadmium or  lead content  
because  i t  i s  in  excess  of  the  l imi ts ,  how does  i t  do  tha t  when i t ' s  not  
been ident i f ied  on the  mug?  
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 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   Okay.   Thank you.  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Mr.  Slane .  
 COMMISSIONER SLANE:  Mr.  El l i s ,  f i r s t ,  I  want  to  thank you 
for  taking the  t ime to  come here .  
 The  rea l  problem here  i s  the  causal  connect ion;  i s  tha t  a  fa i r  
s ta tement?  
 MR.  ELLIS:   Yes ,  i t  i s .  
 COMMISSIONER SLANE:  I 'm s t ruggl ing to  t ry  to  f igure  out  a  
s impl is t ic  so lu t ion  here .   Can we recommend to  Congress  tha t  i f  there  
are  mugs  being sold  a t  pr ices  tha t  a re  noncompet i t ive ,  tha t  the  burden 
shi f t s  to  the  impor ter  a t  tha t  point?  
 MR.  ELLIS:   Yes .   I f  you jus t  took the  pos i t ion  tha t  af ter  the  
Uni ted  Sta tes  government  has  asked the  People 's  Republ ic  of  China  
under  the  Memorandum of  Unders tanding to  ident i fy  whether  the  
fac i l i ty  i s  a  pr ison,  and they refuse  to  g ive  the  informat ion-- l ike  Harry  
sa id  i t  took ten  years- -  a f ter  60  days  there 's  a  presumpt ion tha t  the  
fac i l i ty  i s  a  pr ison fac tory  unt i l  you come forward and es tabl ish  i t  i s  
not .  
 In  a  cour t  of  law,  i f  tha t ' s  what  you ' re  asking,  tha t  i s  the  most  
d i f f icul t  th ing for  us  to  prove because there 's  indi rec t  sh ipment .   There  
i s  no  d i rec t  sh ipment  f rom Luzhong to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .   I  mean the  
Chinese  government  bans  tha t .   The Uni ted  Sta tes  government  bans  
tha t .   
 So  what  you have i s  t rading companies  coming in to  exis tence .   
Maolong and others  who buy di rec t ly  f rom the  fac tory ,  impor t  i t  in to  
the  Uni ted  Sta tes ,  remark i t ,  re label  i t  somet imes ,  mis label  i t  
somet imes  in  order  to  h ide  the  connect ion to  the  Luzhong Pr ison.   And 
so  i f ,  and tha t ' s  why I  sugges ted  in  my c los ing s ta tement  tha t  i f  you,  as  
an  evident iary  i ssue ,  requi re  the  U.S.  Customs to  come forward and 
say  I  reques ted  and they didn ' t  provide  the  informat ion,  so  there 's  a  
burden shi f t  and a  presumpt ion tha t  i t  i s  forced labor .  
 The impor ter  i s  in  the  bes t  pos i t ion  working wi th  the  fac tory  to  
ge t  i t  cer t i f ied  as  not  a  forced labor  fac i l i ty .   That ' s  why we asked the  
FLA to  do an  independent  audi t  because  i f  you go in  and you look a t  
Maolong,  they don ' t  have  the  mi l l s  to  process  the  c lay .   They don ' t  
have  the  fac i l i t ies .   They don ' t  even have any purchase  orders  for  c lay .  
 I t  a l l  comes through the  pr ison.  
 They don ' t  have  s torage  fac i l i t ies  for  the i r  mugs .   You can see  
they ' re  s tored  ins ide  the  pr ison,  so  i t ' s  d i f f icul t  to  ge t  the  informat ion.  
 I  can  show that  and say tha t ,  but  the  problem I  encountered  in  my 
l i t iga t ion  was  the  defendants  took the  pos i t ion ,  wel l ,  Maolong says  
they produce  mugs  too ,  and a l l  mine  came f rom Maolong,  not  the  
pr ison.  
 COMMISSIONER SLANE:  The problem here  i s  the  only  way 
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tha t  th is  i s  going to  be  enforced is  by  pr ivate  indust ry ,  people  l ike  Mr.  
Marck who wi l l  go  af ter  companies  tha t  obviously  are  v io la t ing  the  
law here .   I t ' s  amazing to  me that  you won the  case  in  federa l  cour t  
wi th  the  causal  connect ion i ssue ,  but  sh i f t ing  that  burden would  be  an  
enormous help .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   I t  would ,  because  the  person tha t  has  the  u l t imate  
abi l i ty  to  conf i rm the  causal  connect ion  i s  the  impor ter  because  they ' re  
a l igned in  in teres t .   The  fac tory  wants  to  impor t ,  the  impor ter  wants  to  
impor t ,  and so  i f  they independent ly  go to  a  fac i l i ty  and,  you know,  
l ike  the  Bureau Ver i tas  has  cer t i f ied  audi ts  they can do es tabl ish ing i t  
i s  not  us ing forced labor  in  any of  i t s  product ion  or  mater ia ls .   In  our  
case ,  they t r ied  to  get  the  Bureau Ver i tas  to  do a  noncompl iance  audi t .  
 And then they used that  as ,  wel l ,  see ,  i t  doesn ' t  use  pr ison 
fac i l i t ies ,  but  the  Bureau never  looked a t  the  pr ison issue .   I f  you 
looked a t  even what  the  repor t  sa id ,  they d idn ' t  look to  see  whether  or  
not  the  raw mater ia ls  came f rom another  pr ison or  any par t  of  the  
product  came f rom the  pr ison fac i l i ty ,  which as  far  as  I  can  te l l ,  g iven 
the  inves t iga t ion  we had,  i t  a l l  comes through Luzhong,  and I 'm not  
sure  Gary 's  r ight ,  whether  they make mugs  or  they don ' t  make mugs .   
They appear  to  be  more  of  a  decora t ing  fac i l i ty .  
 But  they go under  the  cover  of ,  wel l ,  jeez ,  we say we produce 70 
mi l l ion .   I f  you look a t  the i r  adver t i s ing  mater ia ls ,  they wi l l  te l l  you 
they produce  70 mi l l ion  p ieces .   The pr ison a lso  says  they produce  70 
mi l l ion  p ieces .  
 The problem that  Maolong has  i s  tha t  i t  only  has  one  k i ln  and i t  
can  only  produce  ten  mi l l ion ,  and in  a  cour t  of  law what  I  asked the  
par t ies ,  wel l ,  where  d id  the  o ther  60  mi l l ion  come from,  I  have  no 
idea ,  and so  I  don ' t  have  any idea  e i ther  except  tha t  they ' re  r ight  
across  the  s t ree t  f rom a  pr ison tha t  has  s ix  k i lns  and can produce  60 
mi l l ion .  
 Now that  i sn ' t  suff ic ient  in  a  cour t  of  law because  i t ' s  a l l  hearsay  
and a  lo t  of  i t  was  precluded f rom being in t roduced.  
 COMMISSIONER SLANE:  Thank you.  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Commiss ioner  Mul loy.  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Thank you,  Mr.  Chairman.   I  want  
to  thank a l l  three  of  you for  be ing here  and giving us  th is  very  helpful  
tes t imony.  
 Let  me jus t  lay  out  what  I  unders tand and then you help  me.   We 
have a  law on the  books  of  our  own country  I  th ink passed over  80 
years  ago that  permits  us  to  ban goods  made by pr ison labor .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   They are  banned.   They can refuse  the  impor ta t ion  
of  them.   They can s top i t  a t  the  border .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Yes ,  we  can keep them out  of  our  
country .  
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 MR.  ELLIS:   Right .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Under  tha t  law.   And when we 
entered the  GATT and the  WTO, we preserved the  r ight  to  be  able  to  
use  tha t  law so  i t ' s  permiss ib le  for  us  to  ban those  goods  under  the  
WTO. 
 MR.  ELLIS:   Right .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Now then the  next  ques t ion  i s  why 
isn ' t  the  law being enforced?   You guys  say  tha t  there  are  goods  
coming in .   Mr.  Wu has  documented th is  s tuf f  in  the  pas t .  
 I t  appears  tha t  par t  of  the  problem is  tha t  the  people  who enforce  
these  laws may have some other  pr ior i t ies  f rom what  you sa id ,  Mr.  
Marck.   So what  you recommend then is  a  pr ivate  cause  of  ac t ion  tha t  
the  people  who are  in jured  compet ing wi th  these  be  able  to  br ing.  
 Now,  my unders tanding is  under  our  ant i t rus t  laws,  we do permit  
pr ivate  causes  of  ac t ion  by people  who are  in jured  by ant i t rus t  
v io la t ions .   The government  i s  not  the  sole  enforcer .   I s  tha t  your  
unders tanding,  Mr.  El l i s?  
 MR.  ELLIS:   Yes ,  and i t ' s  t rue  under  the  Lanham Act  too ,  l ike  
par t  of  the  reason we prevai led  in  the  under ly ing ac t ion  i s  under  the  
Lanham Act  i f  you don ' t  put  the  country  of  or ig in  on the  product ,  
there 's  a  pr ivate  r ight  of  ac t ion  by individuals  to  enforce  tha t .  
 One of  the  o ther  compet i t ive  ways  tha t  they were  get t ing  an  
advantage  over  us  was  they wouldn ' t  have  a  country  of  or ig in ,  and they 
could  se l l  to  any indust r ies  l ike  we couldn ' t ,  l ike  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  
Congress .   When we t ry  to  se l l  to  the  Congress ,  they don ' t  want  "Made 
in  China"  on the  bot tom of  the  mug.  
 We can ' t  do  anything about  tha t  because  i t ' s  required  to  be  put  
on  i t  so  tha t  i f  you jus t  took the  Lanham Act  and added to  tha t  
provis ion a  pr ivate  r ight  of  ac t ion  saying tha t  i f  you es tabl ish  tha t  
pr ison labor  i s  used in  whole  or  par t ,  jus t  l ike  under  1307,  then tha t ' s  
an  unfa i r  bus iness  prac t ice  too ,  and an individual  who is  be ing harmed 
f rom that  can  recover  damages .  
 I  would  sugges t  tha t ,  in  revis ing the  Lanham Act ,  you make the  
damages  a l l  of  the  impor ts  because  they ' re  contraband.  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  I  th ink you 're  going beyond my 
capaci ty  r ight  now.    
 MR.  ELLIS:   Okay.  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  We have  a  law that  permi ts  us  to  
s top the  s tuff  coming in .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   Correct .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  You ' re  recommending tha t  we 
provide  a  pr ivate  r ight  of  ac t ion  for  the  enforcement  of  tha t  law? 
 MR.  ELLIS:   That ' s  r ight .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  But  yet  you brought  a  case  in  the  
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Dist r ic t  Cour t  of  Ohio  and you won,  a t  leas t  par t  of  i t .   That ' s  what  I  
don ' t  unders tand.   I f  you don ' t  have  a  pr ivate  r ight  of  ac t ion  to  enforce  
tha t  law,  on what  bas is  d id  you br ing tha t  case  in  Ohio?   Was i t  a  
d i f ferent  law? 
 MR.  ELLIS:   I t  has  three  aspects ,  wel l ,  there  were  four  aspects  
in  which we brought  tha t  case .   We won three  of  them and los t  the  
pr ison labor  one .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  You los t  the  case  of  the  goods ,  
tha t  i t  was  made by pr ison labor?  
 MR.  ELLIS:   Right .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  You couldn ' t  prove that .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   We couldn ' t  es tabl ish  the  causal  connect ion  
between the  pr ison and the  Maolong in  the  products  tha t  we had in  the  
cour t .   
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Okay.  
 MR.  ELLIS:   I t  was  c lear- -  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Now that ' s  not  the  Lanham Act .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   That ' s  not  the  Lanham Act .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Okay.   The Lanham Act  i s  
something e lse .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   But  when you ' re  engaged in- -what  we t r ied  to  do i s ,  
and i t  was  a  unique ef for t  in  which to  t ry  to  enforce  i t  because  we 
faced the  s tanding issue  of  you cannot  enforce  a  pr ivate  r ight  of  ac t ion  
to  s top pr ison labor .   That ' s  a  governmenta l  funct ion.  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Right .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   You cannot  s top ly ing to  Customs on your  
t ransact ional  va lues  because  tha t ' s  a  governmenta l  funct ion.   Those  a l l  
have  to  be  brought  by the  government  in  the  Cour t  of  In ternat ional  
Trade .  
 But  the  Lanham Act  and some Ohio  s ta tu tes  provide  for  unfa i r  
compet i t ion ,  and what  we argued was  i f  you can u t i l ize  those  ac ts  to  
demonst ra te  the  conspi racy to  engage in  an  unlawful  ac t  to  ge t  a  
compet i t ive  advantage  to  the  d isadvantage  of  your  compet i tors .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Okay.  
 MR.  ELLIS:   But ,  what  u l t imate ly  happened was  we have an  
in junct ion in  p lace  tha t  prec ludes  the  impor ta t ion  of  the  s tuf f .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Let  me jus t  ask  you one more  th ing 
because  my t ime is  coming to  a  c lose .  
 The s impl i f ied  way to  help  you would  be  to  provide  a  pr ivate  
r ight  of  ac t ion  to  ban the  impor ta t ion  of  the  goods  made by pr ison 
labor  and then to  f ix  the  causal  th ing tha t  Commiss ioner  Slane  was  
ta lk ing about .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   Exact ly .   I f  you say i t ' s  banned as  an  unfa i r  
bus iness  prac t ice  and shi f t  the  burden to  the  defendant  to  es tabl ish  i t ' s  
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not ,  you f ix  the  problem I  had in  cour t .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Okay.   Thank you.   We're  going to  
have  someone f rom the  Customs Service  come in  here  la ter  and I  
wanted to  get  i t  c lear  what  you wanted.   Thank you.  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Commiss ioner  Fiedler .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Does  anybody bel ieve  that  the  
MOU is  in  any way effec t ive?   Mr.  Wu? 
 MR.  WU:  I f  the  American government  rea l ly  cared  about  the  
MOU, i t  would  work.   But  s ince  the  MOU was s igned,  I  have  not  seen 
any evidence  of  th is .   You see  so  many products  made by pr isoners .   I  
cannot  f ind  any other  country  where  the  pr isons  make so  many 
products .  I  found that  Dun & Bradst ree t  l i s t s  every  country  inc luding 
the  Uni ted  Sta tes ,  inc luding India ,  inc luding Japan.   There  aren’ t  any 
pr isons  l i s ted  over  there .   But  China  has  314,  and 396 are  l i s ted  on the  
Dun & Bradst ree t  da tabases  jus t  as  a  pr ison name.  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  256.  
 MR.  WU:  Yes .   This  pr ison sys tem provides  b ig  economic  
ass is tance .   According to  Chinese  law,  each pr ison sys tem has  two 
names.   One is  a  pr ison name,  indica t ing  tha t  i t  i s  a  pr ison of  the  
province ,  or  of  the  c i ty ,  and the  o ther  i s  the  enterpr ise 's  name,  such as  
a  coal  mine ,  or  a  manufacturer  of  whatever .    
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  I  be l ieve  tha t  Luzhong Pr ison was  
l i s ted  in  your  Dun & Bradst ree t  repor t ,  as  wel l ,  I  th ink.  
 Do you want  to  answer  my ques t ion?  
 MR.  MARCK:  I  would  agree  tha t  the  Memorandum of  
Unders tanding and the  Sta tement  of  Coopera t ion  because  they ' re  not  
enforced are  use less  and ac tual ly  encourage  people  to  take  advantage  
of  the  s i tua t ion ,  both  expor ters  in  China  and impor ters  in  the  Uni ted  
Sta tes ,  because  there 's  no  enforcement .  
 So i f  somebody was  speeding down the  road and there 's  nobody 
to  g ive  them a  t icket ,  then nobody worr ies  about  the  speed l imi t .   So  
l ikewise ,  there 's  no  enforcement .   
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  So,  hence ,  you sugges t  pr ivate  
r ight  of  ac t ion .   I  unders tand that .  
 MR.  MARCK:  Yes .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Now,  le t ' s  ta lk  about  the  60-day 
requirement  in  the  MOU and in  the  SOC,  which apparent ly  has  not  
been l ived up to  even modest ly ,  i f  I  unders tand your  tes t imony.   There  
was  in  one  case  you c i ted ,  there  was  a  ten  year  gap between the  
reques t  for  the  v is i t ,  and in  documents  tha t  I 've  been looking a t ,  I  
don ' t  th ink I  see  anything quicker  than f ive  years  where  the  agreement  
says  60 days .  
 So the  ques t ion  then becomes on a  pol i t ica l  bas is  wi th  the  Uni ted  
Sta tes ,  i t  seems to  me,  how do you crea te  an  environment  where  you 
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get  compl iance  wi th  the  60 day th ing?   For  ins tance ,  perhaps  by 
refus ing ent ry  to  tha t  product  unt i l  a  v is i t  i s  a l lowed,  which i s ,  i t  
seems to  me,  our  power  to  do,  legis la t ive  power  cer ta in ly  to  do,  to  
require .  
 I  th ink i t  would  require  legis la t ive  power .   We ' l l  ask  ICE that .   I t  
may not .   I t  may be  only  adminis t ra t ive  detent ion  because  they 
current ly ,  by  the  way,  i t  seems to  me,  you 've  got ten  detent ion  orders  in  
the  pas t  tha t  a re  not  the  same level  of  evidence  tha t  you were  required  
to  meet  in  cour t .  
 So  we ' l l  explore  wi th  ICE,  I  think,  when they ar r ive ,  what  the  
d i f ferences  are  in  the  evident iary  requirements  because  i t  seems to  be  
you as  a  pr iva te  individual  or  as  a  bus iness  have  a  h igher  level  of  
evidence  to  meet  than does  the  government  when i t  denies  ent ry  to  the  
product .  
 I  see  my t ime is  running out .    
 MR.  ELLIS:   Can I  jus t  address  tha t  for  a  second?  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Yes ,  p lease .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   To deny ent ry  i s  a  lower  burden,  but  once  i t ' s  been 
denied ,  i t ' s  required  to  be  appealed  up to  the  Cour t  of  In ternat ional  
Trade .  And the  Jus t ice  Depar tment  wi l l  face  the  same burdens  I  had.  
 There 's  a  Genera l  Account ing paper  tha t  was  publ ished in  1995 
regarding a  memorandum of  unders tanding tha t  jus t  sugges ts  they ' re  
not  sure  they could  meet  tha t  burden e i ther .   I  mean they would  have 
the  same hard  requirement  I  have  to  suppor t  what  Customs has  done 
wi thout  the  coopera t ion of  the  Chinese  government  to  ident i fy  the  
re la t ionship .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  But  there  i s  a  b i t  of  a  prac t ica l  
problem for  the  impor ter ,  i s  there  not ,  tha t  i t  would  take  h im a  l i t t le  
whi le  to  go through the  In ternat ional  Trade  Cour t  procedure .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   Yes ,  tha t ' s  why I  suggest  you--  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Whi le  h is  product  i s  s i t t ing  on a  
dock somewhere .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   Right .   I t  would ,  but ,  u l t imate ly  i f  you jus t  make 
some very  s imple  modif ica t ions .   I f  you don ' t  ident i fy  i t  in  60  days ,  
then there 's  a  presumpt ion i t  i s  banned unt i l  you come forward and 
es tabl ish  i t  i s  not  produced us ing forced labor .   That  makes  i t  s impler  
and they are  in  the  pos i t ion  to  get  the  informat ion necessary  to  suppor t  
tha t  i t ' s  not  or  i t  i s .    
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Thank you.   I ' l l  come back.  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Commiss ioner  Reinsch.  
 COMMISSIONER REINSCH:  Thank you.  
 Commiss ioner  Mul loy pursued the  same l ine  I  was  going to  
pursue  to  t ry  to  ge t  a  be t ter  unders tanding of  the  legal  s i tua t ion .   I  
thought  he  got  good c lar i f ica t ion ,  so  I 'm going to  conf ine  mysel f  jus t  
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to  a  couple  ques t ions .  
 Mr.  Wu,  you 've  been involved in  th is  as  we a l l  know for  a  very  
long t ime.   How has  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  government 's  a t t i tude  or  
enforcement  enthusiasm changed over  t ime?   Have you found some 
per iods  when the  Uni ted  Sta tes  government  took on th is  task  more  
aggress ively  than i t  i s  now,  or  have  you found i t  pre t ty  much 
constant ly  in  a  s ta te  of  d is repai r?  
 And,  in  par t icular ,  have  you not iced any di f ference  f rom before  
and af ter  the  t ime tha t  the  Depar tment  of  Homeland Secur i ty  was  
crea ted  and the  Customs Service  was  fo lded in to  ICE? 
 MR.  WU:  So far  I  know that ,  for  example ,  a  Chinese  off ic ia l  
f rom a  Shenyang rubber  boots  manufacturer ,  he  contac ted  me and he  
went  to  Vladivostok in  Russ ia ,  and American off ic ia ls ,  Customs 
off ic ia ls  f rom Bei j ing ,  went  to  Moscow to  meet  h im,  and get  
informat ion,  and give  h im the  permit  tha t  would  a l low him to  go to  the  
Uni ted  Sta tes  to  tes t i fy  before  the  Congress .  
 But ,  unfor tunate ly ,  la ter  nothing happened.  And the  guy was  
rearres ted  by the  Chinese  and sent  back to  China ,  and we los t  the  
connect ion.   This  i s  one  case .  
 The other  case  was  in  2000,  the  b inding c l ips ,  because  we had 
American enterpr ises  here  tha t  v io la ted  the  law,  and the  evidence  was  
c lear ,  and a  wi tness  a lso  came to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .   So tha t  i s  the  
case .   
 S ince  then,  I  have  not  seen any ac t iv i ty  re la ted  to  the  Customs 
Service  in  Bei j ing ,  what  they did ,  par t icular ly  re la t ing  to  the  MOU.  I  
have  not  seen any ac t iv i t ies  tha t  fo l lowed the  MOU regula t ions .   So far  
they s igned a  paper ;  tha t ' s  i t .   The  SOC,  they s igned a  paper ;  tha t ' s  i t .   
Only  a  paper .  
 COMMISSIONER REINSCH:  Wel l ,  maybe Mr.  Marck and Mr.  
El l i s ,  would  want  to  comment ,  too .  
 My ques t ion  i s  i f  there 's  a  legal  problem,  and c lear ly  we have a  
s i tua t ion  tha t ' s  unacceptable  f rom many di f ferent  s tandpoints ,  i t  may 
be  tha t  the  law is  f lawed and needs  to  be  changed.   But  i t  may be  tha t  
we jus t  have  a  government  tha t  has  a  lack  of  enthusiasm for  deal ing  
wi th  th is  problem.   There  are  o ther  ways  to  change that  problem i f  you 
have  people  tha t  a re  prepared to  enforce  i t  aggress ively  and use  the  
tools  tha t  a re  avai lable  i f  those  tools  are  adequate .  
 I 'm t ry ing to  f igure  out  i f  th is  i s  an  enthusiasm problem or  i f  you 
have inadequate  tools  on  the  face  of  i t?  
 MR.  ELLIS:   When we submit ted  our  reques t  to  Customs to  
inves t iga te ,  they in i t ia ted  an  inves t iga t ion .  I  would  te l l  you tha t  
Customs is  t ry ing to  do the  inves t iga t ion  and are  rea l ly  hamstrung by 
the  requirements  on  the  Memorandum of  Unders tanding to  have the  
Chinese  government  or  the  pr isons  se l f - incr iminate  themselves .   They 
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can ' t  ge t  the  informat ion,  and what  they do is  they delay  g iv ing the  
informat ion or  they don ' t  g ive  the  informat ion or  they c lose  the  
fac i l i ty  and then g ive  the  informat ion ten  years  la ter  when i t ' s  no  
longer  opera t ing .  
 So i f  you ta lk  to  the  Customs inves t iga tors  tha t  a re  t ry ing to  do 
i t ,  they ' re  t ry ing to  do the i r  job ,  but  they can ' t  ge t  the  informat ion out  
of  the  Chinese  sys tem.   The other  fac tor  tha t  you need to  unders tand is  
tha t  somet imes  I 'm not  even sure  the  Chinese  government  a t  the  
nat ional  level  unders tands  what 's  happening because  Luzong is  a  s ta te  
pr ison.   I t ' s  happening in  the  province .  They got  enough other  i ssues  
going on tha t  somet imes  tha t  the i r  focus  i sn ' t  as  c lear .  
 COMMISSIONER REINSCH:  That ' s  a  problem that  we ' re  
famil iar  wi th .   That  sugges ts ,  though,  tha t  the  terms of  the  MOU are  
inadequate .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   That ' s  what  I  th ink.   You could  say  as  i t ' s  wr i t ten  
and enforced,  i t  i sn ' t  funct ional ;  i t  doesn ' t  work.   I t ' s  c lear  i t  doesn ' t  
work,  and the  ques t ion  i s ,  i s  there  a  way to  f ix  i t .   I  th ink there  i s ,  but  
i t ' s  g iv ing the  person l ike  Mr.  Marck the  oppor tuni ty  to  s top  i t  because  
he ' l l  see  i t  and do something about  i t ,  not i fy  somebody,  whereas  the  
government  may take  forever .   What  you need to  unders tand is  a  bunch 
of  companies  in  America  and in  China  have gone out  of  bus iness  in  the  
three  years  we 've  t r ied  to  do th is .  
 COMMISSIONER REINSCH:  That ' s  very  helpful .   Thank you.   
Mr.  Marck,  where  do you make your  products?   Maybe I  missed th is  in  
your  s ta tement .  
 MR.  MARCK:  In  Shandong Province .   I  would  buy products  
throughout  China ,  but - -  
 COMMISSIONER REINSCH:  So what  do you do in  Ohio?  
 MR.  MARCK:  We're  an  impor ter  and dis t r ibutor .   We dis t r ibute  
the  products  tha t  we buy both  domest ica l ly  f rom Anchor  Hocking,  e t  
ce tera ,  g lassware .   We buy glassware ,  ceramics ,  s ta in less  s tee l ,  
p las t ic ,  tha t  there 's  no  decora t ions  on them.   They ' re  b lank,  and we 
se l l .  We have a t  leas t  2 ,000 cus tomers .   The top  50 have a t  leas t  a  
hundred employees  tha t  put  the  decora t ion  on.   
 So i f  you wanted a  Uni ted  Sta tes  symbol  put  on  a  mug,  a  ceramic  
mug,  they would  buy the  b lanks  f rom me and then they would  screen 
on the  decora t ion  and se l l  i t .   I t  usual ly  goes  to  what  we ca l l  
promot ional  products ,  companies ,  bus inesses  tha t  want  to  adver t i se ,  a  
bank.   We se l l  to  secondary  manufacturers .   So  we 're  an  impor ter  and 
dis t r ibutor  of  dr inkware  products .  
 COMMISSIONER REINSCH:  So i f  you shut  down your  
opera t ion  tomorrow for  the  reasons  you 've  been discuss ing,  how many 
jobs  in  Ohio  would  be  af fec ted  by that?  
 MR.  MARCK:  In  Ohio ,  hundreds  in  Ohio  and throughout  the  
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country  thousands  because  we se l l  throughout  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  and 
Mexico,  Canada.   We se l l  our  products .  
 COMMISSIONER REINSCH:  Yes ,  but  wouldn ' t  your  cus tomers  
jus t  ge t  them from a  d i f ferent  source  in  tha t  case?  
 MR.  MARCK:  Wel l ,  the  only ,  oh ,  boy,  our  la rges t  compet i tor  i s  
the  pr ison fac tory .   So they could  get  i t  f rom there  as  long as  they ' re  
s t i l l  producing.   So I  do  have some cus tomers  tha t  refuse  to  buy f rom 
them,  but  somet imes  i t ' s  pr ice .  
 We br ing in  product  f rom Thai land,  ceramic  mugs  f rom Thai land.  
 We used to  buy a  lo t  f rom Japan.   We used to  even buy ceramic  mugs  
made in  the  Uni ted  Sta tes ,  but  over  t ime,  the  las t  few years ,  the  pr ice  
d i f ference  i s  such tha t  they decided to  exi t  the  market .  
 COMMISSIONER REINSCH:  Thank you.   My t ime is  more  than 
up.   Thank you.  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   Commiss ioner  Shea.  
 COMMISSIONER SHEA:  Good morning.   Thank you for  your  
tes t imony.  
 Mr.  Marck,  I  assume you 're  in  par tnership  wi th  a  Chinese  
manufacturer ;  r ight?  
 MR.  MARCK:  In  2004,  par t ia l ly  because  of  the  WTO, a  number  
of  the  ceramic  fac tor ies  in  China ,  the  government  d ives ted  the i r  
in teres t  in  i t ,  however  you want  to  say  i t .   Usual ly  i t  was  involvement  
f rom banks ,  and our  larges t  suppl ier ,  our  la rges t  suppl ier  of  ceramic  
coffee  mugs  in  Shandong Province  was  going to  c lose .  
 The person I  used to  impor t  my product  in  ceramic  ware  in  China  
approached me and sa id  they wanted to  know i f  we want  to  help  save  
th is  company,  and we inves ted  in  tha t  company to  keep i t  going.  
 COMMISSIONER SHEA:  But  i t ' s  a  major i ty  owned Chinese  
company?   The major i ty  of  shareholders  are  Chinese  nat ionals?  
 MR.  MARCK:  Oh,  sure ,  sure .   Yes ,  yes .  
 COMMISSIONER SHEA:  I 'm jus t  t ry ing to  get  a  sense  of  the  
extent  of  pr ison labor  in  China .   Are  there  indust r ies  tha t  a re  be ing 
ceded to  pr ison labor ,  manufacturers ,  manufacturers  who employ 
pr ison labor?   I  mean I  assume i t ' s  not  jus t  an  American ox tha t  may be  
being gored,  there 's  a  pr iva te  Chinese  ox tha t ' s - -  
 MR.  MARCK:  Sure .  
 COMMISSIONER SHEA:  - -get t ing  gored here .  
 MR.  MARCK:  I  know that  in  the  las t  few years ,  there 's  been a  
number  of  ceramic  fac tor ies  tha t  made coffee  cups ,  d innerware ,  e t  
ce tera ,  tha t  have  c losed because  they couldn ' t  be  compet i t ive  in  China .  
 There 's  less  and less  a l l  the  t ime and par t ia l ly  because  of  the i r  
compet i t ion .   I  don ' t  care  where  you are ,  voluntary  labor  can never  
compete  wi th  forced labor  on the  same product ,  especia l ly  the  more  
labor  in tens ive .  
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 In  the  ceramic  indust ry ,  i t ' s  my unders tanding f rom the  people  I  
deal  wi th  tha t  in  the  f in ished product ,  labor  i s  30  percent  of  a  coffee  
cup.   The labor  fac tor .   Again ,  as  I  say ,  the  pr ison has  to  put  
something on tha t  for  tha t ,  but  they don ' t  have  to  put  as  much on as  the  
voluntary  labor .   The guards  s t i l l  have  to  be  paid  and they get  some 
income f rom the  manufacture  of  mugs .  
 COMMISSIONER SHEA:  So the  Chinese  manufacturers  and 
suppl iers  who are  producing the  mugs  or  o ther  i tems wi thout  the  use  of  
pr ison labor ,  a re  they jus t  throwing up thei r  hands  and saying we give  
up?   Are  they pushing back?   Are  they doing anything to  s top being 
undercut?  
 MR.  MARCK:  They 're  jus t  c los ing.   I  don ' t  know in ternal ly  i f  
they have an  abi l i ty  to  complain .  
 COMMISSIONER SHEA:  Okay.   Thank you.  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Commiss ioner  Fiedler .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  He was  f i rs t ,  I  th ink.  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   Thank you.   I 'd  l ike  to  get  some 
more  c lar i f ica t ion .   Also ,  whi le  we apprecia te ,  Mr.  Marck,  your  
d iscuss ion of  what  you 've  done,  there  are ,  I 'm sure ,  many companies  
here  in  America  who are  d i rec t ly  compet ing wi th  products  tha t  a re  
coming in ,  not  jus t  s imply  an  impor ter  of  ceramic  cups  tha t  a re  being 
e tched or  whatever  e lse  here ,  tha t  there  are  bas ic  products  tha t  a re  
compet ing agains t  bas ic  manufacturers  here .   So th is  i s  a  very  broad 
problem.  
 I 'd  l ike  to  unders tand and apprecia te  very  much the  work tha t ,  
Mr.  Wu,  you have done in  matching th is  up  wi th  Dun & Bradst ree t .   I  
f ind  i t  s tar t l ing  tha t  we have wel l  over  300 companies ,  pr ison labor  
fac i l i t ies ,  tha t  a re  on  Dun & Bradst ree t ' s  l i s t .   That  would  appear  to  
me to  be  an  inves t iga tory  road map for  our  government  to  be  able  to  
s tar t  connect ing  the  dots  as  to  the  compet i t ive  threa t  we ' re  fac ing.  
 Have you met  wi th  our  government  about  th is?   Are  they aware  
of  your  work?   What  are  they doing?   And Mr.  Marck and Mr.  El l i s ,  
what  would  you do?   You 've  seen th is  work and you 've  refer red  to  i t  as  
wel l .   What  can we do to  u t i l ize  th is  work and s tar t  be ing more  
aggress ive  in  f ight ing for  American in teres ts?  
 MR.  WU:  I  never  met  any government  off ic ia ls .   We jus t  
re leased th is  research today.  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   Okay.   What  would  you do,  Mr.  
Marck and Mr.  El l i s ,  wi th  th is  work?   But ,  Mr.  Wu,  there  have  been 
numbers  in  the  pas t  regarding the  Dun & Bradst ree t  numbers .   I t  was  a  
smal ler  number ,  as  I  remember ,  in  the  pas t ,  but  th is  i s  a  whole ,  a  
monumenta l  increase  in  te rms of  the  ident i f ica t ion  of  these  fac i l i t ies ,  
as  I  reca l l?  
 MR.  WU:  Since  1991,  f rom my view,  the  Customs Service  was  
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qui te  ac t ive .   They issued a  lo t  of  de tent ions ,  product  de tent ions  by 
Customs,  and took American enterpr ises  tha t  v io la ted  the  law to  cour t .  
 But  af ter  a  couple  of  years ,  I  haven’ t  seen any ac t ions  f rom the  
Customs Service  working on i t ,  par t icular ly  wi th  regard  to  the  MOU. 
They jus t  s igned i t .   You see  tha t  the  pr ison vis i t  took ten  years .   This  
i s  k ind of  r id iculous .   
 I  fee l  tha t  they don ' t  rea l ly  want  to  work on i t  because ,  
according to  our  Foundat ion,  so  many products  inc luding garments ,  
inc luding mining products ,  inc luding agr icul tura l  products ,  today they 
are  indi rec t ly  expor ted  to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes- - indi rec t ly .   But  they d id  
expor t  them.    
 This  i s  a  fac i l i ty  tha t ' s  in  every  Chinese  pr ison sys tem,  yet ,  I  d id  
not  f ind  i t  in  any other  country  l i s ted .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   Mr.  El l i s ,  jus t  wi th  your  legal  
knowledge,  what  would  you do now that  you have th is  informat ion i f  
you were  a  government  off ic ia l?  
 MR.  ELLIS:   Even wi th  the  Dun & Bradst ree t  informat ion,  they 
name the  pr isons ,  I  mean tha t ' s  the  same as  s imi lar  informat ion  tha t ' s  
in  the  Laogai  Handbook.   Those  aren ' t  the  impor ters .   Those  aren ' t  the  
f ront  companies .   Those  are  the  pr isons .   And even i f  you have tha t  
informat ion and even i f  the  government  has  the  informat ion,  you have 
to  connect  how are  they get t ing  i t  to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .  
 I t ' s  c lear  tha t  they ' re  ge t t ing  i t  to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .   The 
ques t ion  i s ,  and i t ' s  the  problem that  I  had,  i t ' s  a l l  indi rec t .   The  
Chinese  government  prec ludes  the  expor ta t ion  of  pr ison labor .   The 
Uni ted  Sta tes  prec ludes  the  impor ta t ion  of  i t .   Yet  i t  comes here .  
 I t ' s  par t  of  the  expansion of  China  where  you have 
ent repreneur ia l  Chinese  a t tempt ing to  make a  buck,  and they ' l l  push 
the  l imi ts  on  how they get  tha t  buck,  and they ' l l  say ,  wel l ,  i t  doesn ' t  
mat ter ,  nobody cares .   Wel l ,  you do care ,  but  we 've  been approached 
by t rade  companies ,  and I  th ink I 've  submit ted  tha t  informat ion to  you,  
tha t  ac tual ly  asked us  to  buy cups  f rom them,  and we asked them where  
they get  them,  they sa id  Maolong,  and we say,  wel l ,  tha t ' s  a  pr ison 
fac i l i ty ,  and they sa id ,  yes ,  but  the  pr ice  i s  cheaper  so  you ought  to  
want  i t .  
 I t ' s  d i f f icul t .   The legal  sys tem can ' t  address  the  i ssue  i f  you 
don ' t  sh i f t  the  burden or  g ive  us  a  pr ivate  ac t ion .   The government  has  
the  same problem as  we do in  the  sense  tha t  the  Chinese  won ' t  g ive  
them the  informat ion or  the  connect ion,  and I  don ' t  know how Dun & 
Bradst ree t  i s  going to  get  the  connect ion.  
 We 're  able  to  ge t  i t  because  Maolong is  s i t t ing  on the  f ront  porch 
of  the  Luzhong Pr ison,  and so  you 'd  have  to  take  those  350 companies  
named there  and then t ry  to  f ind  the  f ront  company because  they a l l  
have  f ronts .   I  th ink Mr.  Wu could  g ive  you more  informat ion on how 
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the  s t ructure  i s  se t  up  in  China  because  they a l l  have  f ront  companies .  
 So  tha t  there  i s  a  sys tem se t  up  in  which to  expor t  them,  but  i t ' s  
never  the  fac i l i ty  named in  Dun & Bradst ree t .  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Commiss ioner  Mul loy.  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Thank you,  Mr.  Chairman.   Mr.  
Chairman,  I  want  to  thank you and the  s taf f  who found th is  very  
capable  group of  wi tnesses  to  come in  here  and help  lay  out  th is  i ssue .  
 This  i s  the  bes t  unders tanding I 've  had of  th is  i ssue  ever ,  and you 
three  panel is t s  have  rea l ly  helped.  
 Mr.  Marck,  you make the  point  tha t  i f  the  law isn ' t  enforced,  
then the  law-abiding companies  e i ther  have  to  get  out  of  the  bus iness  
or  be  tempted to  a lso  v io la te  the  law.   That  i s  correc t .  
 I t ' s  because  the  law is  not  enforced,  i t  a l lows bus inessmen that  
a re  wi l l ing  to  ski r t  the  law to  do i t  wi thout  a  repercuss ion.  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Yes .   So that ' s  dr iv ing down 
s tandards  ra ther  than--  
 MR.  MARCK:  That 's  r ight .   That ' s  r ight .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  And somet ime ago,  our  country  put  
a  law in to  p lace  because  we didn ' t  want  lower  s tandards .   We wanted 
to  prohibi t  th is  prac t ice  of  impor t ing  pr ison goods .  
 MR.  MARCK:  Yes .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  I  th ink,  Mr.  El l i s ,  you could  help  
us  wi th  th is .   I  worked up here  a  long t ime so  I  have  some idea  of  the  
legis la t ive  prac t ice .   We need a  narrow f ix  on the  Law that  prohibi ts  
pr ison labor .  I t  should  es tabl ish  a  pr ivate  r ight  of  ac t ion .   How would  
you do that?  Also  expla in  why i t ' s  needed 
 I f  you see  a  broader  f ix ,  I  th ink you ought  to  g ive  us  tha t  
separa te ly .   In  o ther  words ,  you were  ta lk ing about  these  unfa i r  
bus iness  prac t ices .   Do tha t  separa te ly  wi th  an  explanat ion of  why that  
should  be  supplemented.   Somet imes  you have an  oppor tuni ty  to  get  a  
narrow f ix  tha t  you can ' t  ge t  wi th  a  broader  f ix .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   I  th ink the  s imples t  way is  to- -  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  I f  you could  g ive  us  tha t  in  
wri t ing .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   Oh,  I  can  do that  in  wri t ing .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Yes ,  tha t  would  be  bet ter .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   I t  would  be  bet ter  in  wri t ing .  Yes ,  I 'd  be  happy to  
do tha t .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Yes ,  tha t  would  be  very  helpful .   
Thank you again  for  your  very  helpful  tes t imony.  
 One las t  th ing.   I  don ' t  th ink we should  be  dependent  upon the  
Chinese  government  to  help  us  enforce  our  own laws,  i f  they would ,  
and we 've  t r ied  the  Memorandum of  Unders tanding.   I t  doesn ' t  work so  
le t ' s  take  control  of  our  own des t iny ,  pass  our  laws and enforce  them.   
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That 's  my view.  
 MR.  ELLIS:   What  our  exper ience  has  shown is  tha t  American 
companies  can compete  in  the  g lobal  marketplace  even agains t  China  
where  everybody th inks  tha t  Chinese  labor  i s  so  cheap.   I  can  g ive  you 
a  s i tua t ion  where  Gary  Marck three  or  four  years  ago was  t ry ing to  
f igure  out  what  was  going on because  h is  compet i tors  were  being in  
the  marketplace ,  and we have one  smal l  sec tor  where  there 's  a  coat ing  
placed on the  mugs  tha t  we coated  in  America .   
 We sold  the  mug to  a  company in  Colorado that  had 50 
employees  tha t  coated  the  mug and then sold  i t  in  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .   
What  we found was  in  d iscuss ions  wi th  them was  that  something was  
going on,  so  we moved the  coat ing opera t ion  to  China ,  assuming,  l ike  
most  Americans  would ,  the  labor  i s  cheaper .   
 When the  Chinese  coat ing fac tory  fu l ly  opera t ional ,  our  
compet i tors  were  s t i l l  bea t ing  us  in  the  marketplace ,  and tha t ' s  what  
drew our  a t tent ion  to  what 's  rea l ly  going on,  and what 's  rea l ly  going 
on is  through unlawful  ac t iv i t ies ,  Chinese  companies  are  taking 
advantage  of  our  inabi l i ty  or  maybe wi l l  to  enforce  our  laws and are  
ge t t ing  a  compet i t ive  advantage  in  put t ing  American workers  out  of  
jobs  and put t ing  American companies  out  of  bus iness  tha t  could  
compete  in  the  g lobal  marketplace  i f  the  level  p laying f ie ld  was  
enforced.  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Thank you.  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Commiss ioner  Slane .  
 COMMISSIONER SLANE:  To fol low up wi th  Commiss ioner  
Mul loy 's  sugges t ion ,  I  th ink to  get  something done here ,  we need a  
very  narrow def in i t ion .   I t  seems to  me,  and help  me here ,  tha t  what  
t r iggers  th is  sh i f t  of  a  burden is  rea l ly  the  pr ice .  
 I f  i t ' s  coming in  here  way below what  i t  cos ts  the  manufacturer  
in  China  to  make,  then there 's  something obviously  wrong.   I s  tha t  a  
fa i r  s ta tement?  
 MR.  ELLIS:   I f  you take  what  I  jus t  sa id ,  i s  tha t  we knew there  
was  a  pr ice  d i f ference  tha t  we couldn ' t  meet ,  and so  we did  everything 
a  commercia l  manufacturer  would  respond to  be  compet i t ive .   We 
moved the  fac i l i ty .   We t r ied  to  engage in  a l l  legal ly  accepted  conduct ,  
and the  answer  i s  yes .   But  somet imes  there  can be  advantages  in  the  
marketplace  tha t  we haven ' t  adopted yet ,  and we wi l l  adjus t .  
 But ,  the  narrowest  way that  I  can th ink of ,  jus t  s i t t ing  here ,  i s  
tha t  once  Customs asks  for  c lar i f ica t ion  of  whether  a  fac i l i ty  i s  us ing 
forced labor ,  i f  they don ' t  g ive  an answer  to  them,  i t ' s  marked as  
prohibi ted  f rom being impor ted .   I  mean i t ' s  s imple .   I t ' s  a l ready 
wi th in  the  Memorandum of  Unders tanding to  ask .  
 COMMISSIONER SLANE:  Okay.   My other  ques t ion  is  have  you 
col labora ted  wi th  your  counterpar ts  in  o ther  indust r ies  in  the  Uni ted  
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State  tha t  a re  af fec ted  by th is  pr ison labor ,  Chr is tmas  goods  and 
c lo th ing,  e t  ce tera?  
 MR.  ELLIS:   The only  extent  we 've  done tha t  i s  rea l ly  in  the  
In ternat ional  Trade  Commiss ion where  we 're  sugges t ing  tha t  the  
impor ta t ion  of  pr ison-made goods  i s  an  unlawful  government  subsidy 
or  suppor t  of  indust ry ,  and in  tha t  par t icular  hear ing,  there  was  
mul t ip le  sec tors  of  the  Americans  tha t  were  s imi lar ly  tes t i fy ing.  
 COMMISSIONER SLANE:  So obviously  the  problem isn ' t  
conf ined to  ceramics?  
 MR.  ELLIS:   I t ' s  not .  
 COMMISSIONER SLANE:  Okay.  
 MR.  ELLIS:   By 300 companies  tha t  a re  impor t ing  products ,  you 
can see  i t ' s  not .  
 COMMISSIONER SLANE:  Right .  
 MR.  ELLIS:   We have a  narrow exper ience  tha t  I  can  share  wi th  
you.  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Commiss ioner  Fiedler .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  I  would  jus t  l ike  to  make a  
comment  to  Mr.  Wessel ' s  ques t ion  tha t  cer ta in ly  tha t  Dun & Bradst ree t  
l i s t ing  has  a  fundamenta l  in te l l igence  use  for  the  Customs Service .   
We ' l l  ask  when they ar r ive  th is  morning whether  they have the i r  own 
such l i s t .  
 I  don ' t  be l ieve  there  should  be  any expecta t ion  f rom anyone that  
the  Chinese  government  i s  going to  coopera te  wi th  us  in  providing 
incr iminat ing  informat ion about  i t s  pr ison sys tem's  expor ts .   
His tor ica l ly ,  i t ' s  t rading companies ,  s ta te-owned t rading companies ,  
tha t  have  been used to  send the  product  in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .   In  your  
case ,  i t ' s  a  pr iva te  impor ter ,  but  in  a  lo t  of  cases ,  i t  has  been a  s ta te-
owned t rading company.  
 Have any of  those  s ta te-owned t rading companies  ever  been 
sanct ioned for  be ing f ronts  for  forced labor  camps?  
 MR.  ELLIS:   No.  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Which when we have sanct ioned 
Chinese  companies  for  var ious  th ings ,  much more  ser ious ,  i .e . ,  I ranian  
miss i le  par ts  and s tuff  l ike  tha t ,  but  we seem to  have  the  abi l i ty  to  
determine  what  Chinese  companies  are  doing when we want  to ,  and we 
don ' t  have  tha t  abi l i ty  suddenly  when we don ' t  want  to .  
 I  don ' t  have  any other  ques t ions .   I  know that  we ' re  running out  
of  t ime and our  next  panel  i s  a r r iv ing.  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Thank you to  the  panel is ts  for  
the  very  informat ive  tes t imony.   I  second Commiss ioner  Mul loy 's  
comments  and thank you very  much again .  
 We' l l  take  a  br ief  recess  before  s tar t ing  our  next  panel .  
 [Whereupon,  a  shor t  recess  was  taken. ]  
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OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN LARRY M. WORTZEL 
HEARING COCHAIR 

 
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   Good morning,  ladies  and gent lemen.   
Thank you,  again ,  for  be ing here  a t  th is  hear ing on pr ison labor  and 
China 's  pr ison sys tem.  
 As  you know,  the  rea l  focus  tha t  the  Commiss ion has  on th is  i s  
compl iance  wi th  the  agreements  tha t  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  government  has  
s igned wi th  the  Chinese ,  and I  know that  your  f i rs t  panel  ta lked about  
prac t ices  there .   I  was  te l l ing  one  of  our  s taf fers  outs ide ,  my very  f i rs t  
t r ip  to  China  was  1979.   I t  was  a  s ix-week t r ip .   I  was  in  the  Army,  but  
I  got  a  l i t t le  leeway to  go wi th  a  graduate  s tudent  group f rom the  
Univers i ty  of  Hawai i  and i t  was  the  geography depar tment .    
 So we did  s ix  weeks ,  a  week in  each c i ty  tha t  had a  Chinese  
Academy of  Sciences  geography depar tment .   And,  you get  a  l i t t le  tour  
and we went  to  Zhej iang Province  which i s  down a long the  coas t  ins ide  
f rom Shanghai .   We went  to  the  Longj ing Tea Factory ,  huge expanse ,  
and they showed us  around,  showed us  how tea  i s  grown,  they showed 
us  how the  leaves  are  p icked and roas ted .  
 And i t  was  n ine  graduate  s tudents .   We looked around and we 
sa id  how come everybody picking tea  and roas t ing  i t  i s  be tween about  
the  ages  of  12 and 16?   And the  answer  was  th is  i s  a  labor  farm;  these  
are  a l l  juveni le  de l inquents  who have been sentenced to  reform through 
labor ,  and the i r  job  i s  to  p ick  Longj ing tea ,  which is  dr ied  and 
packaged for  expor t .  
 So I  don ' t  know what  the  Longj ing Tea  Factory  i s  doing today,  
but  I  can  te l l  you tha t  tha t  was  my very  f i rs t  exper ience  wi th  pr ison 
labor  in  China .   I t ' s  a  tough and di f f icul t  problem.  
 We're  very  p leased today to  have  Mr.  James  Ink f rom 
Immigrat ion  and Customs Enforcement  to  ta lk  to  us  about  the  
government 's  v iew on i t ,  how the  Chinese  government  i s  complying 
wi th  our  agreements ,  and the  abi l i ty  of  the  people  tha t  a re  in  the  
embassy to  ac tual ly  go out  and make sure  tha t  pr ison labor  products  
are  not  be ing expor ted  to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .  
 Mr .  Ink  went  to  Flor ida  Sta te  Univers i ty  in  Tal lahassee ,  and he 's  
got  a  degree  in  cr iminology,  so  he 's  been in  law enforcement  for  a  very  
long t ime,  served wi th  the  Miami  Shores  Pol ice  Depar tment ,  went  to  
law school  a t  the  Univers i ty  of  South  Carol ina ,  and was  a  Navy Judge 
Advocate  Genera l  in  Hawai i .  
 I  don ' t  know why he  came to  Washington f rom those  two nice  
p laces ,  but  he  says  he 's  going to  Singapore ,  which I  th ink he ' l l  l ike .  
 He jo ined the  Customs Service  in  1993 in  the  Miami  off ice ,  and 
now he  does  in ternat ional  work here .   He 's  been the  ICE At taché  out  in  
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Frankfur t ,  Germany.   So we have a  very  exper ienced law enforcement  
of f icer  and an  a t torney and t r ia l  counsel ,  and we apprecia te  you very  
much taking the  t ime to  be  here  and the  government  and the  
depar tment  for  sending you.  
 

STATEMENT OF MR. JAMES INK 
DEPUTY ASSISTANT DIRECTOR 

INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS,  IMMIGRATION AND CUSTOMS 
ENFORCEMENT, WASHINGTON, DC 

 
 MR.  INK:  Thank you,  s i r .   Good morning,  Chairman Wortze l  
and Commiss ioner  Videnieks ,  d is t inguished members  of  the  U.S. -China  
Economic  and Secur i ty  Review Commiss ion.  
 I t  i s  my pr iv i lege  to  appear  before  you today to  d iscuss  
Immigrat ion  and Customs Enforcement  or  ICE's  ro le  in  the  
inves t iga t ion  of  pr ison labor  in  China  and the  implementa t ion  of  the  
Memorandum of  Unders tanding between the  Uni ted  Sta tes  and China  
regarding pr ison labor  products .  
 I  would  l ike  to  thank the  Commiss ion for  i t s  cont inued 
commitment  to  combat ing pr ison labor  in  China .   The impor ta t ion  of  
goods  in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  tha t  a re  manufactured by pr ison labor  i s  
prohibi ted  under  the  Tar i f f  Act  of  1930,  or  19 U.S.C.  Sect ion 1307.   
Now,  the  Tar i f f  Act  i s  a  Depress ion era  legis la t ion  enacted  dur ing an  
era  tha t  focused on protec t ing  U.S.  agr icul ture  and indust r ia l  in teres ts .  
 S ince  then,  the  focus  of  pr ison labor  inves t iga t ions  has  evolved 
to  become more  concerned wi th  the  v io la t ion  of  human r ights .   
Speci f ica l ly ,  the  law prohibi ts  the  impor ta t ion  of  merchandise  tha t  i s  
mined,  produced or  manufactured whol ly  or  in  par t  in  a  fore ign 
country  by convic t ,  forced or  indentured labor  under  penal  sanct ions .  
 His tor ica l ly  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  Customs Service  pursued 
a l legat ions  of  impor ta t ion  of  goods  manufactured wi th  forced,  chi ld  or  
pr ison labor .   However ,  in  2003,  the  Depar tment  of  Homeland Secur i ty  
was  crea ted ,  and the  Uni ted  Sta tes  Customs Services  Off ice  of  
Inves t iga t ions  merged wi th  the  Inves t iga t ions  Branch from the  
Immigra t ion  and Natura l iza t ion  Service  to  form Immigra t ion  and 
Customs Enforcement ,  or  ICE.  
 S ince  tha t  t ime,  ICE has  assumed the  legacy Uni ted  Sta tes  
Customs Service 's  ro le  of  inves t iga t ing  a l legat ions  of  forced,  chi ld  and 
pr ison labor .  
 Inves t iga t ing  a l legat ions  of  pr ison labor  in  fore ign countr ies  i s  
the  responsibi l i ty  of  ICE At taché  Off ices  abroad who opera te  out  of  
the  Off ice  of  In ternat ional  Affa i rs .  
 Current ly ,  ICE has  approximate ly  50 off ices  in  40 locat ions  
throughout  the  wor ld .   At taché  Off ices  are  responsible  for  coordinat ing  
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in ternat ional  inves t iga t ions  wi th fore ign counterpar ts ,  providing 
suppor t  to  our  domest ic  of f ices ,  as  wel l  as  o ther  in ternat ional  ICE 
off ices ,  and combat ing t ransnat ional  cr ime,  acquir ing  and developing 
in te l l igence  re la ted  to  cross-border  cr iminal  ac t iv i ty ,  and fos ter ing  
lawful  in ternat ional  t rade  and t ravel  through l ia ison wi th  hos t  country  
governments ,  indust r ies ,  and law enforcement .  
 In  addi t ion ,  the  At taché  Off ices  are  responsible  for  coordinat ing  
wi th  fore ign counterpar ts  on  shar ing informat ion under  b i la tera l  
agreements  such as  Customs Mutual  Ass is tance  Agreements  or  what  
are  refer red  to  as  CMAAs or  Mutual  Legal  Ass is tance  Agreements ,  
such as  MLATs.  Actual ly  they were  of ten  ca l led  Mutual  Legal  
Ass is tance  Treat ies .  
 In  1992,  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  and China  s igned a  Memorandum of  
Unders tanding prohibi t ing  t rade  in  labor  products  and a l lowing the  
ICE At taché  to  inspect  Chinese  pr ison fac i l i t ies  to  ver i fy  tha t  Chinese  
pr isoners  were  not  making products  tha t  were  being impor ted  in to  the  
Uni ted  Sta tes .  
 In  1994,  a  Sta tement  of  Coopera t ion  was  s igned by the  Uni ted  
Sta tes  and China  which c lar i f ied  the  procedures  for  inves t iga t ions  and 
pr ison fac i l i ty  v is i t s .  
 According to  these  agreements ,  e i ther  par ty  may reques t  the  
o ther  to  prompt ly  inves t iga te  companies ,  enterpr ises  or  uni ts  suspected  
of  v io la t ing  re levant  regula t ions  or  laws based on speci f ic  informat ion 
provided by the  reques t ing  par ty .  
 The agreement  fur ther  s t ipula tes  tha t  in  order  to  resolve  speci f ic  
outs tanding cases ,  each par ty  wi l l  upon the  reques t  of  the  o ther  par ty  
prompt ly  ar range and fac i l i ta te  v is i t s  by  responsible  off ic ia ls  of  the  
o ther  par ty 's  d ip lomat ic  miss ion to  i t s  respect ive  companies ,  
enterpr ises  or  uni ts .  
 In  1994,  af ter  the  s igning of  the  Sta tement  of  Coopera t ion,  ICE 
At taché  Bei j ing  opened 12 pr ison labor  cases  based on a l legat ions  and 
informat ion tha t  we received.   From 1996 to  2000,  ICE conducted  three  
pr ison vis i t s  and found no evidence  to  suppor t  a l legat ions  tha t  goods  
manufactured by pr ison labor  were  being expor ted  to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .  
 However ,  in  February  2000,  Al l ied  In ternat ional  Manufactur ing 
Company of  Nanj ing,  China  became the  f i rs t  company to  be  convic ted  
in  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  for  v io la t ing  forced labor  laws by t ranspor t ing  
goods  made by pr ison labor  in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .   That  i s  the  meta l  
b inder  case  i f  you ' re  not  a l ready aware  of  i t .  
 In  June 2002,  Treasury  Ass is tant  Secre tary  Kenneth  Lawson met  
wi th  the  Minis t ry  of  Jus t ice  Direc tor  Genera l  in  China ,  and fo l lowing 
the  meet ing,  re la t ions  between what  I ' l l  re fer  to  as  MOJ and ICE 
improved,  and in  September  2002,  the  ICE At taché  and other  U.S.  
Embassy off ic ia ls  conducted  the  f i rs t  pr ison vis i t  s ince  2000.  
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 From February  to  September  2003,  MOJ and ICE At taché  Bei j ing  
held  monthly  meet ings .   There  was  a  br ief  suspension of  pr ison vis i t s  
a t  tha t  t ime due to  a  SARS,  or  Severe  Acute  Respira tory  Syndrome,  
outbreak,  but  the  monthly  meet ings  resumed in  2004 and cont inued 
through June 2006.  
 Dur ing th is  t ime,  ICE At taché  Bei j ing  v is i ted  f ive  fac i l i t ies  and,  
f inding no evidence  to  subs tant ia te  a l legat ions  of  pr ison labor ,  c losed 
a l l  f ive  cases .  
 Today,  ICE cont inues  to  work to  pursue  these  cases .   We bel ieve  
i t  i s  only  through a  s t rong col labora t ive  ef for t  wi th  fu l l  adherence  to  
the  terms agreed upon in  the  MOU that  we can successful ly  inves t iga te  
and s top impor ta t ion  of  goods  in to  the  U.S.  produced by Chinese  
pr ison labor .  
 I  hope my remarks  today have been helpful  and informat ive ,  and 
I  would  l ike  to  take  th is  oppor tuni ty  to  thank the  Commiss ion for  i t s  
suppor t  of  ICE and our  law enforcement  miss ion,  and I ' l l  be  g lad  to  
answer  any ques t ions  you may have a t  th is  t ime.  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   Thank you very  much.  
 Can you te l l  us  how you 're  s taf fed  out  in  Bei j ing  or  a t  the  
consula tes  to  conduct  these  inves t iga t ions  or  v is i t s?  
 MR.  INK:  We have the  ICE At taché  tha t  i s  out  there  suppor ted  
by other  ICE representa t ives  working wi th  them,  and we have Fore ign 
Service  nat ionals  who work wi th  us  a t  the  Embassy there  in  Bei j ing .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   Thank you very  much.  

 
 

PANEL II:   Discuss ion,  Quest ions  and Answers  
 

 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   Thank you for  being here ,  and I  
apprecia te  your  tes t imony and your  help .  
 A couple  of  ques t ions ,  i f  I  may.   Where  does  th is  f i t  in  the  
overa l l  scope of  re la t ions  and what  i s  the  ass is tance  tha t  the  Sta te  
Depar tment  g ives  you?   You ment ioned jus t  a  couple  of  moments  ago,  
as  I  reca l l ,  tha t  you were  having monthly  v is i t s  which s topped roughly  
two years  ago;  i s  tha t  r ight?  
 MR.  INK:  In  2006,  they s topped for  a  per iod of  t ime due to  the  
SARS outbreak.  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   Right .  
 MR.  INK:  Then they resumed.  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   And have s topped?  
 MR.  INK:  In  2006,  they s topped.   There  was  some confus ion,  I  
be l ieve .   What  had happened is ,  and I  th ink I  ta lked to  you a t  the  
previous  t ime we met  on  th is ,  there  was  a  monthly  Pr ison Labor  
Working Group meet ing,  and the  Chinese  off ic ia ls  s ta ted  tha t  they 
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were  in teres ted  in  conduct ing h igh level  meet ings  wi th  U.S.  of f ic ia ls  
on  adminis t ra t ions  of  pr isons  as  per  the  Lawson agreement  of  2002,  to  
exchange methodologies ,  v iews concerning the  adminis t ra t ion  of  
pr isons .  
 At  tha t  point ,  the  ICE At taché  Bei j ing  responded that  tha t  was  a  
d i f ferent  area .   In  o ther  words ,  tha t  fe l l  under  the  Depar tment  of  
Jus t ice  and the  Bureau of  Pr isons ,  and tha t  these  were  two separa te  
ca tegor ies .   However ,  a t  tha t  point  in  t ime,  the  Minis t ry  of  Jus t ice  sa id  
tha t  they were  going to  s top  the  v is i t s  unt i l  a  v is i t  took place .  
 My unders tanding is  tha t  a  v is i t  d id  take  p lace  to  the  Uni ted  
Sta tes ,  but  not  on  the  i ssue  of  pr ison labor .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   So is  there  any current  d ia logue 
now wi th  the  Chinese  government  on the  i ssue  of  pr ison labor  impor ts  
in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes?  
 MR.  INK:   Actual ly ,  in  a  very  t imely  event ,  on  Tuesday,  the  
At taché ,  th is  week,  met  wi th  Minis t ry  of  Jus t ice  off ic ia ls  to  d iscuss  
cont inuing opera t ions  looking in to  the  o ld  cases  and current  cases .  
 The meet ing,  there  was  nothing over t ly  outs tanding tha t  took 
place  a t  the  meet ing.   I t  moved s low there .   However ,  they discussed 
some of  the  concerns .   The Minis t ry  of  Jus t ice ,  my unders tanding,  
indica ted  or  one  of  the  off ic ia ls  indica ted ,  tha t  there  were ,  I  be l ieve ,  
seven areas  tha t  they were  responsible  for ,  and tha t  one  of  those  areas  
was  developing pol icy  and ru les  for  pr isons  wi th in  China .   However ,  
the  ac tual  adminis t ra t ion  of  the  pr isons  was  handled  a t  the  provincia l  
level .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   So s ince  1992,  i f  I  remember ,  the  
MOU, they have now essent ia l ly  asked for  a  redef in i t ion  of  the  
process .   Am I  unders tanding you correc t ly  tha t  they ' re  now saying 
tha t  th is  has  not  worked correc t ly ,  and we want  to  do th is  a  d i f ferent  
way?  
 MR.  INK:   No,  s i r ,  I  can ' t  say  tha t .   I  can  say  to  you tha t  they 
s topped i t .   There  was  some confus ion,  but  I  be l ieve  the  At taché  Off ice  
put  i t  back on course .   
 Now,  I  know there  were  severa l  inquir ies  sent  up .   I  be l ieve  we 
sent  up  an  inquiry  on a  case  on October  31,  2007.   In  December ,  we 
met  wi th  Embassy off ic ia ls  to  d iscuss  fur ther  ac t ion ,  and again  in  
Apr i l  of  2008,  we reached out .   We actual ly  reached out  to  an  
addi t ional  or  a  new adminis t ra t ion  or  new agency wi th in  China .   I  
be l ieve  i t ' s  the  Minis t ry  of  Heal th  and Human Resources  and Socia l  
Secur i ty .  
 I t  was  crea ted ,  I  be l ieve ,  in  Apr i l  of  2008 as  par t  of  a  
reorganiza t ion  in  China .   I t ' s  a  super  agency,  so  to  speak,  and they 
deal  wi th  labor  i ssues  as  a  whole .   So we reached out  to  them to  
d iscuss  some broader  i ssues .  
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 However ,  they a lso  advised us  tha t  they would  ra ther  wai t  unt i l  
Ju ly  of  2008 to  fur ther  d iscuss  i t ,  but  as  to  your  ques t ion  on whether  
or  not  tha t  they have  indica ted  tha t  there  i s  a  res t ructur ing,  no ,  I  don ' t  
be l ieve  tha t ' s  the  case ,  s i r .    
 I  be l ieve  s imply  tha t  there  was  some confus ion.   I  be l ieve  we 
have se t  i t  back on course .   We had asked to  meet  again .   We've  had 
some inquir ies ,  and they are  jus t  ge t t ing  back in to  meet ing now.  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   How many open cases  are  there  
f rom your  point  of  v iew? 
 MR.  INK:   We have,  I  be l ieve ,  13  outs tanding cases ,  one  tha t  i s  
ac t ive .   Now when I  say  13 outs tanding,  they have gone to  a  cer ta in  
point ,  and a t  tha t  point ,  we are  wai t ing  for  a  response  so  they are  put  
in to  a  pending s ta tus .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   What  i s  the  longes t  tha t  you are  
wai t ing  i f  you have 13?  
 MR.  INK:  From 1994.   At  the  s ta tement ,  a f ter  they were  opened 
af ter  the  Sta tement  of  Coopera t ion  was  s igned.  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   So the  60 days  has  been abrogated  
in  a l l  those  cases?  
 MR.  INK:   The 60-day t ime l imi t  doesn ' t  seem to  be  a  hard  and 
fas t  ru le ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   Okay.   Hopeful ly ,  there  wi l l  be  
another  round.   I ' l l  y ie ld  to  tha t  point .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   With  Commiss ioner  Fiedler ' s  
permiss ion,  I  want  to  fo l low up on one  point  tha t  you ra ised ,  Mr.  Ink .   
Do you know i f  you can te l l  us  whether  the  Bureau of  Pr isons  of  the  
Uni ted  Sta tes  has  ac tual ly  fo l lowed up on tha t  o ther  reques t  for  
d iscuss ions  on pr ison management?  
 MR.  INK:   I  cannot  answer  tha t  wi th  100 percent  accuracy,  s i r .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   But  that  could  s t i l l  be  a  b lockage in  
your  work?  
 MR.  INK:   I  don ' t  be l ieve  so .   I  be l ieve  the  Depar tment  of  
Jus t ice  had fo l lowed up on that .  I 'm jus t  not  cognizant  of  everything 
tha t  took place .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:  Thank you.  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  A couple  of  ques t ions .  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Does  ICE mainta in  a  l i s t  of  
Chinese  pr isons?  
 MR.  INK:   I 'm not  100 percent  cer ta in  as  to  whether  the  At taché  
Off ice  does .   I  don ' t  be l ieve  we do a t  headquar ters ,  no ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Does  anybody in  the  U.S.  
government  mainta in  a  l i s t ,  to  your  knowledge,  of  Chinese  pr isons?  
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 MR.  INK:   I  am not  aware  i f  any of  the  o ther  agencies  such as  
Commerce  or  Labor  do.  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Does  anybody in  the  U.S.  
government  mainta in  a  l i s t  of  suspect  products  tha t  might  be  coming in  
f rom--  
 MR.  INK:  No,  s i r .   I  th ink we discussed th is  before .   We are  
aware  of  cer ta in  products  pursuant  to  the  cases  tha t  we may open 
where  those  products  are  brought  up  as  a  topic  of  be ing produced,  but  
I 'm not  aware  of  a  master  l i s t .  
 I  know that  some of  the  d i f ferent  d iv is ions  are  aware  of  cer ta in  
th ings  tha t  they keep a  c lose  eye  on because  of  pa t terns ,  but  I  can ' t  
swear  to  you tha t  there  i s  a  main  l i s t  of  a l l  these  type  of  th ings .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Are  you aware  that  th is  morning 
Mr.  Wu came and gave us  a  repor t  tha t  he  produced tha t  l i s t s  314 
Chinese  pr isons  he  a l leges  in  Dun & Bradst ree t ' s  in ternat ional  
da tabases ,  i t s  commercia l  da tabases?  
 MR.  INK:   I  was  aware  he  spoke th is  morning,  s i r ,  but  I  was  not  
present ,  no .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Have you ever  used Dun & 
Bradst ree t  as  a  source  of  informat ion for  Chinese  pr isons?  
 MR.  INK:   When I  was  a  f ie ld  agent ,  I  used Dun & Bradst ree t ,  
but  I  haven ' t  used i t  in  a  long t ime,  s i r ,  to  be  hones t  wi th  you.  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  We were  repor ted  on th is  morning 
that  65  of  the  pr isons  tha t  he  found in  Dun & Bradst ree t ' s  l i s t ings  in  
China  ac tual ly  had the  term "pr ison"  in  them.  
 MR.  INK:   I  be l ieve  tha t ' s  whol ly  poss ib le ,  s i r .   That  would  be  
another  source  of  informat ion tha t  any of  our  f ie ld  inves t iga tors  would  
use  to  col lec t  informat ion,  and l ike  Dun & Bradst ree t ,  there  are  dozens  
and dozens  of  var ious  sys tems that  we can use  to  pul l  up  informat ion 
in  a l l  d i f ferent  formats  wi th  a l l  d i f ferent  names tha t  may give  us  
something,  but  not  necessar i ly  g ive  us  a  so l id  lead .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Are  you aware  of  whether  or  not  
the  Uni ted  Sta tes  government  inc luding ICE or  any other  government  
agency expends  any in te l l igence  resources  on the  ques t ion  of  whether  
or  not  a  fac i l i ty  i s  a  pr ison producing products  for  expor t?  
 MR.  INK:   In te l l igence  resources?    
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Other  than publ ic  open source  
informat ion?  
 MR.  INK:   I 'm not  sure  I  fo l low exact ly  what  you ' re  asking,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Okay.   Do we l i s ten?  
 MR.  INK:   I  would  not  know that ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Okay,  le t ' s  take  open source  
informat ion.   ICE is  not  a l lowed to  wander  around China  on i t s  own;  i s  
i t?  
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 MR.  INK:   No,  s i r ;  tha t  i s  correc t .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  So does  i t  look a t  Chinese  
publ ica t ions  to  see  i f  they ' re  publ ishing any informat ion on Chinese  
pr isons  and/or  Chinese  pr ison products?  
 MR.  INK:  Do ICE agents?  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Anybody in  ICE or  to  your  
knowledge anybody in  the  U.S.  government  who provides  tha t  
informat ion to  ICE? 
 MR.  INK:  I  can ' t  speak of  any agencies  wi th in  the  U.S.  
government .   I  don ' t  have  tha t  f i rs t -hand knowledge,  but  I  would  
imagine  tha t  any ICE agent  who 's  conduct ing an  inves t iga t ion  which 
delves  in to  the  area  of  pr ison labor  would  probably  avai l  themselves  of  
those  resources  i f  they exis ted .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  I f  they exis ted .  But  you don ' t  have  
any knowledge whether  they exis t?  
 MR.  INK:   No,  s i r ,  I  don ' t  have  that  f i rs t -hand knowledge.  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Do you th ink the  MOU is  ef fec t ive  
as  an  enforcement  tool  of  U.S.  law? 
 MR.  INK:   The Memorandum of  Unders tanding and the  Sta tement  
of  Coopera t ion both  could  be  ef fec t ive  i f  fo l lowed,  le t ' s  say ,  to  the  60-
day l imi ts .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  So how would  you suggest  tha t  
persuas ive  abi l i ty  be  exerc ised  in  order  to  ge t  v is i t s  to  pr isons  wi th in  
60 days?  
 MR.  INK:   I  be l ieve  tha t  cont inued dia logue a t  both  our  level  as  
the  At taché  in  China  as  wel l  as  a t  senior  levels  through Sta te  
Depar tment  and otherwise ,  heads  of  depar tments ,  such as- -or  senior  
of f ic ia ls  such as  when Assis tant  Secre tary  Lawson went  over  there ,  
tha t  we cont inue  d ia logue a t  those  levels  so  tha t  they unders tand and 
cont inue  to  unders tand the  magni tude  tha t  we view th is  problem wi th .  
 And I  th ink tha t  we cont inue  through that  level  to  approach the  
MOU and jus t  how impor tant  i t  i s  to  us .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  So you don ' t  th ink tha t  e i ther  in  
the  las t  15  years ,  you have not  engaged in  tha t  d ia logue to  encourage  
them to  do the  60 days ,  or  maybe i t  needs  20?  
 MR.  INK:   At  the  ICE level ,  a t  the  At taché  level ,  s i r ,  we are  
involved wi th  d iscuss ions  concerning the  cases  tha t  we ' re  inves t iga t ing  
and other  topics  around that .   Whether  or  not  o ther  than a t  the  senior  
levels - -and I  be l ieve  the  las t  t ime they ac tual ly  took place  a t  tha t  level  
was  2002--now,  I  know in  2006,  the  Chinese  d id  want  to  meet ,  but  tha t  
was ,  as  I  expla ined to  you,  there  was  some confus ion on exact ly  what  
they wished to  d iscuss .  
 Do I  th ink i t ' s  t ime for  another  senior  of f ic ia l  to  be  engaged in  
tha t  level?   I  would  th ink so ,  s i r .  
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 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  So you bel ieve  ta lk ,  not  leverage  
f rom the  Uni ted  Sta tes ,  i s  necessary  in  order  to  enforce  the  60-day 
t ime l imi t?  
 MR.  INK:   I  wouldn ' t  ru le  out  leverage ,  s i r .   I  jus t  don ' t  know 
that  I  have  the  answers  as  to  what  speci f ica l ly  leverage  would  get  the  
Chinese  government  to  do something di f ferent .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Okay.   I  see  my t ime is  up ,  and I ' l l  
take  a  second round.   Thank you.  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   Commiss ioner  Mul loy.  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Thank you,  Mr.  Chairman.  
 Mr.  Ink,  thank you for  your  long service  to  the  nat ion  in  many 
di f ferent  capaci t ies .  
 MR.  INK:   My pleasure ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  And your  col leagues  f rom the  
depar tment  tha t  you brought  wi th  you.  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  I 'm going to  go through a  few 
th ings ,  and s ince  we 're  l imi ted  in  t ime,  i f  we could  jus t  ge t  my 
ques t ion  out  and get  the  answer  and we ' l l  move r ight  through a  ser ies .  
 MR.  INK:  Very wel l ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Thank you.  
 As  s  you pointed  out ,  we passed th is  law in  1930.   That  i s  the  
law.  
 MR.  INK:  The Tar i f f  Act ,  yes ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  That  permits  us  to  prohibi t  the  
impor ta t ion  of  pr ison,  of  goods  made by pr ison labor .  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Your  group has  a  responsibi l i ty  of  
he lp ing to  enforce  tha t  law;  i s  tha t  correc t?  
 MR.  INK:   Yes ,  s i r .   As  I  expla ined ear l ier ,  f rom the  days  of  the  
Uni ted  Sta tes  Customs Service ,  ICE assumed the  responsibi l i t ies  of  
inves t iga t ing  a l legat ions  of  v io la t ions  under  the  Tar i f f  Act .   Customs 
and Border  Protec t ion  a lso  works  wi th  us  in  the  enforcement  of  i t  
where  goods  are  being brought  in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  I  see  where  you were  an  Ass is tant  
U.S.  At torney for  awhi le .  
 MR.  INK:   I  was  a  Specia l  Ass is tant ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  You prepare  the  cases  tha t  then 
Jus t ice  would  br ing.  
 MR.  INK:   As  a  Specia l  Ass is tant  U.S.  At torney? 
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  No,  in  your  current  capaci ty .   
Your  agency would  prepare  the  case  and then Jus t ice  could  br ing the  
case  to  prohibi t  the  impor ta t ion  of  those  goods?  
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 MR.  INK:   Yes ,  s i r .   Our  cr iminal  inves t iga tors  i f  they have  
suff ic ient  evidence  and put  the  case  together  and the  U.S.  At torney 's  
Off ice  accepts  the  case ,  then we would  move forward agains t  the  
individual  who was  charged wi th  the  cr ime.  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  What  o ther  laws does  your  
organiza t ion  a lso  have  the  responsibi l i ty  of  enforc ing?  
 MR.  INK:   I  can  say that  when we 're  the  U.S.  Customs Service ,  I  
had over  500 laws.   Now,  wi th  ICE,  we 've  merged both  the  former  
Customs and now the  former  Immigrat ion  in to  ICE.   We have a  myriad  
of  cr imes  ranging f rom money launder ing,  chi ld  pornography,  s t ra tegic  
weapons ,  dual  use  commodi t ies ,  human smuggl ing,  human t raf f icking,  
text i les ,  IPR viola t ions ,  a  myriad  of  d i f ferent  areas  tha t  we enforce ,  
s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Where  would  th is  be  in  the  
pr ior i t ies  of  ICE?  You 've  got  so  many impor tant  dut ies .   Where  would  
th is  fa l l  in  the  rank?  
 MR.  INK:   In  the  h ierarchy.   Obviously ,  pr ison labor  i s  par t  of  
the--we ca l l  the  ca tegory  Forced Chi ld  Labor ,  and I  be l ieve  Forced 
Chi ld  Labor  was  put  on  i t  s imply  because  of  the  ca tch  of  chi ldren .  
 But  Forced Chi ld  Labor  i s  a  s igni f icant  program wi th in  ICE.   To 
show you jus t  how s igni f icant  i t  i s ,  we 've ,  s ince  the  t rans i t ion ,  and 
we 've  s tar ted-- le t  me s tep  back a  second-- the  in ternat ional  aspect  of  
ICE was  k ind of  the  las t  por t ion  in  the  t rans i t ion  once  the  agencies  had 
merged to  become ICE.  
 That  be ing sa id ,  wi th in  the  las t  few years ,  we put  a  very  
concer ted  ef for t  to  ge t  the  Forced Chi ld  Labor  Program up to  speed.   
We jus t  conducted a  very  b ig  conference  in  Singapore ,  and a t  the  end 
of  las t  year ,  we conducted a  b ig  one  in  Miami  where  we 're  ge t t ing  our  
agents  across  the  board ,  both  Immigrat ion  and Customs that  have  
merged in to  ICE,  up to  speed on issues  of  forced chi ld  labor .  
 We 're  a lso  in  the  process  of  put t ing  together  mater ia l  tha t  we can 
re lease  to  our  a t taches  as  k ind of  force  mul t ip l ier  where  they wi l l  be  
able  to  go to  the i r  fore ign counterpar ts  wi th  mater ia ls  tha t  they wi l l  
g ive  them,  k ind of  t ra in  them to  then go out  and conduct  these  
inves t iga t ions  in  the i r  own countr ies .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Okay.   Now,  then the  next  s tep  for  
me is  to  say  you ta lked about  a  case ,  the  b inary  meta ls  case?  
 MR.  INK:   The binder- - the  c l ips .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Was tha t  a  pr ison labor  case  tha t  
you brought  successful ly  agains t  somebody?  
 MR.  INK:  I t  was  a  successful  case .   I  don ' t  have  a l l  the  
background on the  case ,  but - -  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Did Jus t ice  br ing  l i t iga t ion?  
 MR.  INK:   I t  would  have been prosecuted by Jus t ice ,  yes ,  s i r .  
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 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Yes .   And you guys  prepared i t?  
 MR.  INK:   I  be l ieve  so ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  In  which country?   Was tha t  
China?  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  And i t  was  a  pr ison labor?  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  And you brought  i t .  Okay.   I  used 
to  be  in  the  Jus t ice  Depar tment  in  the  Ant i t rus t  Divis ion so  I  have  
some sense  of  th is - - tha t  the  pr iva te  bar  could  a lso  ass is t  in  enforc ing 
the  ant i t rus t  laws.   There 's  been a  recommendat ion here  tha t  the  
pr iva te  sec tor  a lso  be  ent i t led  to  enforce  the  law that  prohibi t s  the  
impor ta t ion  of  pr ison-made goods .   I  don ' t  know whether  you ' re  f ree  to  
opine  on that  or  not .  
 MR.  INK:   As  to  whether  or  not  the  fore ign or  the  pr ivate  
indust ry ,  I  would  leave  tha t  up  to  the  legis la t ion  to  make tha t  
de terminat ion .   However ,  I  can  say  as  to  cr iminal  sanct ions  or  cr iminal  
v io la t ions ,  I  would  sugges t  tha t  i t  was  the  U.S.  government .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  No,  i t  wouldn ' t  be  cr iminal  
enforcement .   I t  would  be  to  jus t  to  he lp  enforce  the  ban so  i f  
somebody is  br inging i t  in ,  tha t  they could  br ing an  ac t ion  in  the  
pr ivate  sec tor  to  help  prevent  tha t  good f rom being impor ted .  
 MR.  INK:   We s tand ready a t  any t ime to  take  informat ion f rom 
the  pr ivate  sec tor  tha t  would  ass is t  us  wi th  our  inves t iga t ions ,  and 
whether  or  not  a  cr iminal  prosecut ion  resul ts  f rom i t  or  an  
adminis t ra t ive  se izure ,  we would  g ladly  take  legi t imate  informat ion 
and explore  i t  to  see  whether  or  not  there  i s  something there .  
 Whether  or  not  the  pr iva te  sec tor  i s  s i tua ted  to  fa i r ly  be  involved 
in  whether  or  not  goods  are  brought  in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes ,  I  can ' t  say  
a l though one would  th ink tha t  there  might  be  some conf l ic t  of  in teres t  
a t  t imes  f rom a  pr ivate  indust ry  regula t ing  pr ivate  indust ry  where  
compet i tors  are  involved.  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Thank you,  Mr.  Chairman.   I  th ink 
I ' l l  jus t  have  to  come back.   Thank you.   Thank you,  Mr.  Chairman.   
Thank you,  Mr.  Ink.  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   Commiss ioner  Videnieks .  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Good morning,  again .   The 
ques t ion I  have  fo l lows up on Commiss ioner  Mul loy 's  ques t ion .   Can 
you be  more  speci f ic  as  to  the  pr ior i ty  of  enforc ing the  law prohibi t ing  
a l l  impor ts  conta in ing pr ison labor?   I  unders tand ter ror ism is  b ig  r ight  
now and other  th ings .   Where  would  enforcement  of  i t  in  the  scheme of  
th ings ,  especia l ly  when you only  randomly inspect  l ike  two percent  of  
a l l  impor ts  coming in  a t  the  border  or  a t  the  point  of  des t ina t ion?   
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Okay.  
 MR.  INK:  You ' l l  forgive  me i f  I  can ' t  g ive  you the  exact  
numerica l  l i s t ,  where  i t  would  fa l l  on  the  l i s t ,  but  I  know i t  i s  one  of  
the  s igni f icant  programs wi th in  ICE given the  amount  of  resources .  
 Now,  again ,  when you say pr ison labor ,  I  inc lude  tha t  under  the  
Forced Chi ld  Labor  Program.  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Do you dis t inguish  between 
what  we ca l l  pr ison labor?   The MOA and the  SOC speci f ica l ly  ta lk  
about  pr ison labor .   Forced labor ,  Commiss ioner  Fiedler  i s  much more  
famil iar  wi th  the  subjec t  d is t inguishing the  two terms.  
 MR.  INK:   The money that  we receive  f rom the  government  for  
Forced Chi ld  Labor  covers  a l l  the  forced labor  areas .   So there  are  
d i f ferent  subcategor ies  of  forced labor ,  but  i t  i s  a l l  par t  of ,  again ,  what  
I  refer  to  as  the  Forced Chi ld  Labor  Program or  Forced Labor .  
 We take  i t  ser ious ly .   We have severa l  of f ices  tha t  a re  funded by 
the  money to  look a t  these  type  of  i ssues ,  whether  i t  be  pr ison labor  or  
s lave  labor  in  the  var ious  countr ies .   We take  i t  very  ser ious ly .   We 
have severa l  inves t iga t ive  projec ts  tha t  we work on and educat ing both  
our  a t taches  and the  fore ign governments  tha t  we work wi th .  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   We're  not  be ing country  
speci f ic  here ,  but  the  Commiss ion 's  mandate  i s  country  speci f ic .  
 MR.  INK:  Unders tood,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   The ques t ion  was  asked ear l ier  
about  s taf f ing  in  Bei j ing .   How many people  does  ICE have current ly--  
 MR.  INK:  In  the  Bei j ing  Off ice?  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   - - in  the  Bei j ing  Off ice  and who 
are ,  I  guess- -  
 MR.  INK:   Cr iminal  inves t iga tors?  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Wel l ,  no .   People  dedica ted  to  
the  narrow issue  we 're  ta lk ing about  here .  
 MR.  INK:  I f  I  might?  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Yes .  
 MR.  INK:  Okay.   We have two Fore ign Service  nat ionals ,  three  
ICE reps ,  and one  ass is tant  a t taché  and then the  a t taché .  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Thank you very  much.   The 
o ther  ques t ion  I  have  i s  about  de terminat ion.   You used to  have  a  
de terminat ion  tha t  had to  be  made a t  the  commiss ioner  level  or  even 
higher .  
 MR.  INK:   In  the  Customs Service .  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   At  o ld  Customs pr ior  to  
i ssuance  of  these  detent ion  orders .   I s  the  level ,  the  requirement  for  a  
de terminat ion  a t  fa i r ly  h igh levels  s t i l l  in  effec t ,  and does  i t  s low 
th ings  down? 
 MR.  INK:   For  the  detent ion orders?  
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 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Yes .  
 MR.  INK:  That  would  be  handled by Customs and Border  
Protec t ion ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Okay.   Sorry .  
 MR.  INK:   No,  tha t ' s  okay.   Bel ieve  me,  s ince  the  spl i t ,  i t ' s - -  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Things  have changed.  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER VIDENIEKS:   Thank you very  much.  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   Commiss ioner  Slane .  
 COMMISSIONER SLANE:  Thanks  for  taking the  t ime to  come 
here ,  Mr.  Ink.    
 My ques t ion  i s  when you are  in terac t ing  wi th  the  Minis t ry  of  
Jus t ice ,  i s  i t  fa i r  to  say  tha t  they ' re  rea l ly  s tonewal l ing  ICE? 
 MR.  INK:  Having not  taken place  or  having not  been present  
dur ing any of  the  negot ia t ions  and jus t  deal ing  wi th  the  l i te ra ture  and 
mater ia l  and repor ts  and people  I  ta lk  to  on i t ,  I  would  say  tha t  some 
of  i t  i s  the  way of  doing business  in  tha t  par t  of  the  wor ld ,  and 
negot ia t ions  a t  any t ime between di f ferent  countr ies  can be  s low and 
methodical .  
 When I  was  in  Europe,  I  found the  same th ing.   Whether  i t ' s  any 
greater  there  than anywhere  e lse ,  perhaps .   Are  they s tonewal l ing?   I  
can ' t  g ive  you any cer ta in ty  on tha t ,  s i r .   I  don ' t  th ink I  have  enough 
empir ica l  da ta .   I  mean I  can  te l l  you tha t  th ings  are  not  moving as  fas t  
as  we would  l ike .  
 COMMISSIONER SLANE:  Let  me ask  another  ques t ion.   Do you 
see  a  d isconnect  be tween the  Minis t ry  of  Jus t ice  and the  provincia l  
leaders  where  these  pr isons  are  located?  
 MR.  INK:   That  would  have been my next  thought  to  your  f i rs t  
ques t ion ,  tha t  when they met  on Tuesday,  and the  representa t ive  f rom 
the  Minis t ry  of  Jus t ice  indica ted  tha t  we are  responsible  for  pol icy  and 
regula t ions .   But  i t  i s  the  provincia l  governments  tha t  ac tual ly  handle  
the  pr isons  and the  inves t iga t ions ,  our  representa t ive  or  our  a t taché  
reques ted  informat ion on a  speci f ic  case  tha t  they brought  up ,  which 
they sa id  was  unsubstant ia ted .  
 When we asked for  the  paperwork on i t ,  h is  comment  was  tha t  he  
d id  not  have  tha t  f rom the  provincia l  author i t ies  and was  not  ready to  
d iscuss  i t  any fur ther .   Could  tha t  be  a  s tumbl ing block?   I  would  say  
absolute ly .   As  in  any bureaucracy,  and we 've  seen i t  in  our  own,  a t  
t imes  informat ion going f rom one agency or  one  level  of  government  to  
the  next  obviously  s lows i t  down.  
 Given the  s ize  of  the  nat ion  tha t  we ' re  ta lk ing about ,  I  would  say  
tha t  tha t  probably  does  have  s igni f icant  bear ing on the  speed wi th  
which th is  whole  process  was  taking ef fec t .  
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 COMMISSIONER SLANE:  Thank you.  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   Mr.  Ink,  I 'm not  going to  subject  you 
to  more  than two rounds ,  but  I  th ink we do have t ime s ince  you ' re  the  
only  wi tness  and I  know commiss ioners  have ques t ions .   So i f  you ' l l  
bear  wi th  us .  
 MR.  INK:   Not  a  problem.  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   We' l l  run through another  round.  
 MR.  INK:   That 's  okay,  s i r .   That ' s  why I 'm here .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:  I 'm going to  s tar t .  I 'm looking a t  the ,  I  
don ' t  know i f  you 've  seen i t ,  but  the  May 20,  2008 repor t  by  the  Uni ted  
Sta tes  Embassy on Forced and Chi ld  Labor  tha t  they d id  in  response  to  
a  reques t  f rom the  Depar tment  of  Labor .  
 MR.  INK:   I  would  have to  say  tha t  I  have  not  seen that ,  s i r .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:  You have not .   Okay.   Bruce  Levine  i s  
the  Labor  Off icer ;  he 's  an  Econ Off icer  a t  the  Embassy.   I 've  served 
wi th  h im there  twice .  He 's  a  grea t  of f icer .   I  know him.   He did  a  very  
comprehensive  repor t .  
 I t  has  a  number  of  p laces  in  i t  where  the  draf ters  f rom the  
Embassy c i te  repor ts  by  former  pr ison inmates  of  pr isons  a t tached to  
indust r ies  in  China  where  goods  were  manufactured.  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:  Now,  i t ' s  not  your  i ssue ,  but  i t ' s  a  
l i t t le  def ic ient  in  ac tual ly  naming the  pr isons  or  the  indust r ies ,  which 
would  be  n ice  to  have.   And the  cable  i s  a lso  a  l i t t le  def ic ient ,  I  would  
say ,  in  te l l ing  us  where  the  goods  go when they ' re  produced because  i f  
they ' re  not  coming to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes ,  not  much of  a  problem for  us .  
 MR.  INK:   I  can ' t  speak to  the  completeness  of  a  Sta te  
Depar tment  document .   I  would  sugges t  to  you,  though,  tha t  i f  they lef t  
out  names of  pr isons ,  a l legat ions  wi thout  more  substance  could  subjec t  
the  U.S.  government  to  poss ib le  l i t iga t ion  should  we er roneously  s ta te  
the  a l legat ion  and i t  be  proven fa lse  when that  would  come back on a  
company that  was  involved in  goods  or  of  some nature .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   I  agree .   I 'm going to  suppor t  
something Commiss ioner  Fiedler  was  approaching.   I  th ink we could  
probably  debate  how to  pr ior i t ize  pr ison labor  versus  moving nuclear  
mater ia ls  to  te r ror is t s  in  te rms of  our  na t ional  secur i ty  pr ior i t ies .   Do 
you know i f  your  At taché  or  your  people  out  there  are  involved in  
debr ief ing  these  pr isoners  or  these  former  pr isoners?  
 MR.  INK:   In  China ,  i t ' s  a  l i t t le  d i f f icul t .   We are  not  a l lowed to  
inves t iga te  in  the  t radi t ional  sense  wi th in  China .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   But  somebody a t  the  Embassy is  
ta lk ing to  a  former  pr isoner .    
 MR.  INK:   I  am not  aware .   I  don ' t  be l ieve  our  people  are .   
Whether  or  not  someone e lse  a t  pos t ,  I  would  f ind  that  would  be  a  
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unique s i tua t ion .  
 Now,  i f  somebody was  in  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  and they came 
forward wi th  evidence  to  our  off ices  tha t  we could  look in to  and 
inves t iga te  fur ther ,  we would  welcome them wi th  open arms i f  they 
had informat ion.   But- -  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   We get  out  there  once  a  year  so  we can 
ac tual ly  pursue  th is  out  there .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  I  know the  answer  to  your  
ques t ion.  CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   But  I  can te l l  
you tha t  as  a  Mil i ta ry  At taché  a t  the  Embassy,  i f  the  Sta te  Depar tment  
of f icer  draf ted  a  repor t  on  arms sa les ,  was  in  contac t  wi th  some 
Chinese  tha t  was  providing informat ion,  I 'd  probably  be  there .  
 MR.  INK:   Again ,  s i r ,  wi th in  China ,  we are  not  conduct ing your  
t radi t ional  inves t iga t ion .   We cer ta in ly  aren ' t  doing i t  a round town in  
China .   Whether  or  not  something goes  on wi th in  the  Embassy and 
somebody has  spoken to  us- -  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:  Okay.   Thank you.  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   I t ' s  ac tual ly  a  pre t ty  comprehensive  
repor t  tha t  they put  in .   In teres t ingly ,  the  Chinese  government ,  and 
they c i te  some effor ts  on  the  par t  of  the  Chinese  government  
speci f ica l ly  to  address  chi ld  labor  and tha t  the  Chinese  government  a t  
leas t  has  to ld  tha t  wi th  the i r  own reorganiza t ion ,  tha t  they in tend to  
t ry  and get  be t ter  judic ia l  review of  forced re-educat ion through labor .  
 So decent  repor t .   I  commend i t  to  you.  
 MR.  INK:  Very wel l ,  s i r .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:  Thanks .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  After  we met  wi th  ICE off ic ia ls  
and your  predecessor  who was  then I  th ink an  ac t ing  d i rec tor .  
 MR.  INK:  He is  the  Deputy  Direc tor  Michael  Feinberg .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Okay.   You submit ted  some 
answers  to  our  ques t ions ,  and I 'm wonder ing whether  you have now 
changed posi t ions  f rom your  tes t imony.   
 MR.  INK:   I  be l ieve  the  answers  to  those  ques t ions ,  we had 
sugges ted  poss ib le  revis i t ing  the  MOU. 
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Yes .   You speci f ica l ly  say in  
response  to  ques t ions  about  the  60-day issue ,  as  a  proposed amendment  
to  the  current  MOU, ICE would  recommend that  i f  the  MOJ,  the  
Minis t ry  of  Jus t ice ,  in  China ,  does  not  respond wi th in  60 days  to  a  
reques t ,  ICE would  refer  the  case  to  CBP and recommend that  CBP 
issues  a  de tent ion  order  on  a l l  products  enter ing the  U.S.  f rom that  
par t icular  manufacturer .  
 That  i s  a  b i t  d i f ferent  and is  a  l i t t le  in  l ine  wi th  our  previous  
wi tnesses '  recommendat ions ,  which is  i f  they don ' t  le t  us  in  in  60 days ,  
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we don ' t  le t  the  product  in to  the  country .  
 MR.  INK:   I  don ' t  th ink i t ' s  necessar i ly  d i f ferent  as  much as  
addi t ional .   What  was  sa id  there  was  in  response  to  ques t ions ,  speci f ic  
ques t ions ,  and i t  i s  a  sugges t ion  on revis i t ing  the  MOU and what  
might .   To be  honest ,  though,  wi th  you,  s i r ,  we cannot  say  for  cer ta in  
whether  or  not  tha t  i s  going to  break the  logjam,  so  to  speak.  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  No,  the  spi r i t  in  which i t  was  
asked,  and I  th ink given was  tha t  you fo lks  are  on the  ground burdened 
wi th  the  responsibi l i ty  of  enforc ing something tha t  in  our  v iew or  in  
my view cer ta in ly  i s  an  insuff ic ient  ins t rument  and one  in  which you 
don ' t  have  the  proper  tools  to  do your  job .   And so  we were  not  a t  a l l  
faul t ing  ICE.  
 MR.  INK:  Unders tood,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  We' re  faul t ing  more  the  d ip lomats  
who fool ishly ,  in  my view,  negot ia ted  th is  agreement .  
 MR.  INK:   Far  be  i t  f rom me to  s tand in  the  way,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Now,  the  pr ivate  r ight  of  ac t ion  
tha t  was  ra ised  by Mr.  Mul loy or  ear l ie r  wi tnesses  i s  c lear ly  a  c iv i l  
ac t ion .   Al l  sa id  and done,  in  the  las t  50  years  or  however  long s ince  
Smoot-Hawley has  been in ,  how many people  have  been put  in  ja i l  
under  th is  as  a  cr iminal  s ta tu te?   Cer ta in ly  not  even s ix ,  I  th ink,  i s  a  
fa i r  answer  even though you probably  don ' t  know the  exact  answer ;  
r ight?  
 MR.  INK:   Al l  I  could  te l l  you is  tha t  I  know in  the  b inder  case ,  
the  ac tual  amount  of  punishment  was  re la t ive ly  s l ight .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  I  happen to  have conversancy wi th  
the  b inder  case  because  we in  my other  ha t  a t  the  Laogai  Research 
Foundat ion ass is ted  the  U.S.  bus inessman in  fo l lowing the  t ruck f rom 
i t s  fac tory  to  the  pr ison,  back again ,  f i lmed i t ,  went  on  te levis ion,  
b lah-blah-blah ,  and you guys  d id  a  very  good job because  we got  a  
wi tness  out  of  the  country  in to  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  a t  the  r i sk  of  h is  l i fe .  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  Okay.   And so  i t  takes  tha t  level  of  
evidence  in  order  to  put ,  r ight ful ly  so ,  someone in  ja i l  in  the  Uni ted  
Sta tes .   We are  qui te  d i f ferent  f rom China  in  tha t  respect .  
 Therefore ,  i t  seems to  me ineffect ive  to  have  a  cr iminal  s ta tu te .   
The i ssue  i s  not  put t ing  people  in  ja i l  for  v io la t ing  our  Smoot-Hawley 
law.  The issues  should  be  s topping the  product  f rom coming in to  the  
Uni ted  Sta tes  and s topping the  prac t ice  on the  o ther  s ide  of  the  ocean 
or  d is incent iv iz ing another  government  to  engage in  th is  ac t iv i ty ,  not  
to  put  in  ja i l  greedy people  only .  
 MR.  INK:  Yes ,  s i r .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  And I  th ink that ' s  the  bas is  for  the  
pr ivate  r ight  of  ac t ion  tha t  I  heard ,  and the  pr ivate  r ight  of  ac t ion  
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s t r ikes  me f ixes  the  pr ior i ty  ques t ion ,  which is  we have very  impor tant  
governmenta l  pr ior i t ies  a t  the  moment  tha t  pa le  the  i ssue  of  pr ison 
labor ,  but  individual ly ,  l ike  our  former  wi tness  here  ear l ie r  th is  
morning,  i s  immedia te ly  damaged.   He jus t  doesn ' t  ge t  to  the  top  of  the  
pr ior i ty  l i s t .  
 But  he  can take ,  i f  he  i s  being put  out  of  bus iness  by pr ison 
labor  in  China ,  he  would  have a  pr ivate  r ight  of  ac t ion  i f  one  exis ted  
in  the  law so  tha t  you wouldn ' t  have  to  waste  your  t ime on pr ison labor  
i ssue .  
 MR.  INK:   Wel l ,  i f  I  might .   Again ,  we don ' t  consider  th is  a  
waste  of  t ime.   This  i s  what  we do.   We are  cr iminal  inves t iga tors  and 
th is  i s  another  one  of  the  s tep-- I  unders tand where  the  pr ivate  sec tor  i s  
coming f rom,  but  we take  each of  the  laws that  we enforce  very  
ser ious ly  and do our  bes t  to  cover  as  many of  them as  poss ib le .  
 I  unders tand tha t  i t  may not  be  to  the  speed or  l ik ing of  a  lo t  of  
the  pr ivate  companies ,  but  we do the  bes t  tha t  we can.   When the  
informat ion is  g iven to  us  by the  pr ivate  sec tor ,  we do our  level  bes t  
then to  look and review every  a l legat ion ,  and i f  the  evidence  i s  there ,  
we go forward on i t .  
 COMMISSIONER FIEDLER:  I  don ' t  th ink anybody here  i s  
faul t ing  ICE for  the  doing of  i t s  job ,  but  I  would  submit  to  you,  and 
not  in  a  g l ib  fashion,  and as  an  ending s ta tement  f rom me,  tha t  
spending 15 years  ta lk ing to  these  guys  about  ge t t ing  th ings  i s  
character is t ica l ly  a  waste  of  t ime.  
 Thank you.  
 MR.  INK:  Sure .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   Commiss ioner  Mul loy.  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Thank you,  Mr.  Chairman.   I  want  
to  fo l low up on what  Commiss ioner  Fiedler  sa id .   Here 's  the  way I  
would  unders tand.   We have a  law that  says  don ' t  impor t  th is  s tuf f .   
We fought  then to  make sure  tha t  tha t  law was  protec ted  when we 
entered  in to  the  GATT and the  WTO.  In  o ther  words ,  we got  speci f ic  
ar t ic les  in  the  GATT and the  WTO that  permit  us  to  keep goods  made 
by pr ison labor  out  of  the  country .  
 So our  law is  fu l ly  consis tent  wi th  our  in ternat ional  obl iga t ions .  
 Then we had a  problem in  China ,  a l legat ions ,  and I 'm sure  what  
happened here  i s  the  bus iness  communi ty  was  concerned that  i f  we ' re  
too  r igorous  in  enforc ing that  law,  maybe our  expor ts  to  China  could  
get  hur t  by  them manufactur ing cases .   So everybody says  okay,  le t ' s  
do  an  MOU, and the  two governments  wi l l  coopera te .  
 But  the  MOU doesn ' t  work a t  leas t  f rom what  I  can  see .   So then 
the  ques t ion  i s  bus inessmen in  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  who aren ' t  br inging in  
the  pr ison labor  s tuff  suffer  compet i t ive  d isadvantage .   Our  own law is  
not  enforced and i t ' s  a  s i tua t ion  where  the  people  say ,  wel l ,  i f  we ' re  
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not  enforc ing the  law,  maybe we ' l l  par t ic ipate  in  the  game.  
 The bet ter  way,  i t  seems to  me,  i s  to  br ing the  pr ivate  cause  of  
ac t ion  on c iv i l  where  then i t ' s  not  a  cr iminal  mat ter ;  i t ' s  jus t  
bus inessmen helping to  enforce  the  law.   I  know I  asked you before  
and you were  beginning to  opine  on that  when we ran  out  of  t ime.   
P lease   me through th is  based on your  long exper ience  what  are  the  
pros  and cons ,  in  your  v iew,  of  amending the  law to  provide  a  pr ivate  
r ight  of  ac t ion?  
 MR.  INK:   I  can ' t  rea l ly  speak to  amending the  law,  and I  would  
leave  tha t  to  the  legis la ture  as  wel l  as  my super iors .   Again ,  going 
back to  the  pr iva te  sec tor ,  I  remember  back when I  was  doing money 
launder ing inves t iga t ions  wi th in  Miami ,  and of ten  wi th  what  we ca l l  
the  "Black Market  Peso Exchange,  we had the  bus iness  communi ty  
come to  us  because  legi t imate  bus inessmen were  suffer ing where  o ther  
bus inessmen were  avai l ing  themselves  of  the  Black Market  Peso 
Exchange.  
 But  they came to  us  in  our  law enforcement  capaci ty  to  ass is t  
them,  in  o ther  words ,  br inging us  the  evidence  tha t  these  o ther  
bus inessmen were  us ing unscrupulous  tac t ics .   They were  breaking the  
law.  
 But  I  had not  considered nor  d id  they,  I  th ink,  a t  tha t  point  in  
t ime giving them any kind of  pr ivate  r ight  of  ac t ion .   Again ,  I  can ' t  
speak for  what  the  legis la ture  should  do.   I  won ' t  presume to  do that .   
There  are  conf l ic ts ,  I  be l ieve ,  i f  pr iva te  indust ry  i s  a  par tner  of  ours  
and can help  us  in  everything tha t  we do,  and in  severa l  a reas  pr ivate  
indust ry  helps  us  wi th  the  se izures  and the  adminis t ra t ive  sanct ions .  
 But  to  whether  or  not  they should  have a  r ight  of  ac t ion ,  again ,  
one  could  see  tha t  a  conf l ic t  of  in teres t  might  ar i se  wi th in  a  
communi ty  where  one  i s  tasked wi th  some kind of  r ight  in  enforc ing or  
prevent ing v io la t ions .  
 COMMISSIONER MULLOY:  Thank you.   That ' s  very  helpful .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   Let  me pick  up on jus t  tha t  mat ter  
for  a  moment  and then go to  one  or  two other  ques t ions  because  I  th ink 
our  t rade  laws are  r i fe  wi th  pr iva te  r ights  of  ac t ion  whether  i t ' s  
ant idumping,  whether  i t ' s  countervai l ing  duty ,  whether  i t ' s  any of  a  
number  of  o ther  areas  where  the  bar  has  the  abi l i ty  to  pe t i t ion  br inging 
the  case  and have the  hal ls  of  jus t ice  wi th in  our  own government  ass is t  
them in  terms of  pursuing American in teres ts .   So  I  th ink there  are  
cer ta in  th ings  tha t  we may want  to  pursue  in  tha t  a rea .  
 Let  me unders tand a  couple  of  th ings ,  and you sa id  ear l ier  tha t  
th ings  are  not  moving as  fas t  as  we might  l ike .   That ' s  probably  the  
grea tes t  unders ta tement  I 've  heard  here .  
 Are  the  re-educat ion  through labor  camps t rea ted  as  pr ison labor  
by the  U.S.  government?  
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 MR.  INK:   I  can ' t  speak to  tha t - - re-educat ion camps.   I  would  
say  we look a t  pr ison labor ,  pr ison fac i l i t ies  and pr isons .   So i f  
something fe l l  in to  what  we considered a  pr ison fac i l i ty ,  and I  assume 
tha t - -  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   I f  they can ' t  go  home a t  n ight  or  
they can ' t  go  home,  we would  consider  i t  to  be  pr ison labor .   So we 're  
not  wi l l ing  to  abide  by the  Chinese  def in i t ion  of  what  a  pr ison is  and 
i s  not ;  i s  tha t  correc t?  
 MR.  INK:   Pursuant  to  the  terms of  the  MOU and what  we 're  
inves t iga t ing ,  i f  we have reason to  bel ieve  or  an  a l legat ion  tha t  a  
cer ta in  fac i l i ty  tha t  would  r i se  to  the  level  of  a  pr ison,  in  our  eyes ,  I  
assume we would  reques t  the  informat ion pursuant  to  the  MOU and the  
Sta tement  of  Coopera t ion as  we would  wi th  a  hard  and fas t  pr ison.  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   Okay.   Also ,  and correc t  me i f  I 'm 
wrong,  in  my reading of  the  under ly ing s ta tu te ,  MOU, e t  ce tera ,  as  i t ' s  
wr i t ten  now,  i f  the  Chinese  do not  respond wi th in  60 days ,  we could  
deta in  the  products  a t  the  border ;  i s  tha t  correc t?  
 MR.  INK:   I  be l ieve  tha t  i s  accura te .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   And we s imply  choose  not  to  a t  th is  
point?    In  most  cases .  
 MR.  INK:   There 's  a  process  tha t  we have to  go through where  i f  
we make the  reques t ,  a f ter  a  cer ta in  amount  of  t ime,  they can f i le  back 
wi th  a  reques t .   Whether  or  not  we choose  to  depends  on the  amount  of  
evidence  we have to  subs tant ia te  an  a l legat ion  or  o ther  fac tors  tha t  
f igure  in to  i t .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   But  you sa id  there  were  13 open 
cases ,  and I  assume s ince  we 're  cont inuing to  pursue  them,  we cont inue  
to  be l ieve  tha t  there  i s  some val idi ty  to  those  cases .   As  I  read  the  
under ly ing MOU and the  SOC,  as  I  recal l ,  i f  one  were  to  take  th is  a l l  
the  way out ,  tha t  would  probably  be--what- -120 days  and maybe one 
o ther  shor t  per iod thereaf ter ,  cer ta in ly  not  13  to  15 years?  
 MR.  INK:   What  we are  looking for  would  be  compl iance  on the  
par t  of  the  Chinese  wi th  the  MOU and the  Sta tement  of  Coopera t ion  in  
a  response  f rom them.   This  came up a t  the  June 18 meet ing where  
when the  At taché ,  dur ing the  conversa t ion  wi th  the  Chinese  off ic ia ls  
f rom the  Minis t ry  of  Jus t ice ,  the  At taché  brought  up  or  they had 
brought  up ,  I  th ink I  to ld  you,  a  case  tha t  they sa id  the  provincia l  
government  had looked a t ,  and there  was  no substant ia l - - i t  wasn ' t  
leg i t imate .  
 Our  At taché  advised tha t  we apprecia ted  the  informat ion,  but  
tha t  we took these  very  ser ious ly ,  and we needed a  more  formal  
response  wi th  informat ion tha t  we could  work wi th ,  a t  which point  we 
were  to ld  tha t  they d idn ' t  have  i t .   That  was  wi th  the  provincia l  and 
they weren ' t  prepared to  d iscuss  i t  fur ther .  
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 So  we indica ted  to  them that  we 'd  be  f i l ing  a  formal  reques t  in  
order  to  ge t  tha t  informat ion .   What  we are  looking for  i s  them to  come 
back and te l l  us  no or  yes .   Now,  shor t ly  thereaf ter  the  Minis t ry  of  
Jus t ice  off ic ia l  indica ted  tha t  they knew that  we had severa l  cases  tha t  
were  o ld  and open and that  they be l ieved tha t  severa l  of  those  cases  
involved companies  where  the  product ion l ine  had moved or  the  pr ison 
had shut  down and that  i t  was  t ime to  look beyond,  maybe shut  those  
cases  down and move forward.  
 I  be l ieve  our  At taché’s  response  to  tha t  was  tha t  we could  
d iscuss  c los ing some of  these  cases  when we had received the  
requirements  pursuant  to  the  MOU.  In  o ther  words ,  not  a  problem,  we 
can move forward i f  you can provide  us  wi th  the  documenta t ion saying 
one  way or  another  as  to  these  a l legat ions .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   Okay.   But  the  ear l ie r  ques t ion  I  
had asked is  i f  under  the  MOU and the  SEC,  the  t ime per iod lapses  
when we f i le  a  case ,  we would  be  wi th in  our  r ights  to  deta in  those  
products .   We are  being delayed by China 's  fa i lure  to  respond in  a  
t imely  manner .   They are  choosing a t  t imes  to  defer  a t tent ion  to  
provincia l ,  local  and other  author i t ies .   They don ' t  seem to  have the  
same problem wi th  In ternet  f reedom when they want  to  pursue  
something.  
 But  th is  i s  a t  th is  point  a  ques t ion  of  b i la tera l  unwil l ingness  to  
pursue  th is ,  i t  sounds  l ike  to  me as  wel l .  
 MR.  INK:   I  would  have to  look back,  to  be  honest  wi th  you,  
wi th  a  cer ta in  scrut iny  of  the  MOU and the  Sta tement  of  Coopera t ion 
to  ensure  the  exact  requirements  on  tha t .   Suff ice  i t  to  say  there  i s  a  
60-day requirement ,  but  whether  or  not ,  I  would  have to  look fur ther  
as  to  what  you ' re  going in to  and a l luding to ,  tha t  we can go move to  
deta in ,  because  there 's  severa l  o ther  fac tors  obviously  tha t  f igure  in to  
whether  or  not  we ' re  going to ,  tha t  Customs and Border  Protec t ion  
would  deta in  goods ,  and again  tha t  i s  a  d i f ferent  agency that  makes  the  
decis ion,  whether  or  not  to  deta in  goods .  
 So,  again ,  I  would  have to  look fur ther  a t  i t  and I 'd  have  to  take  
o ther  fac tors  in to  considera t ion .  
 COMMISSIONER WESSEL:   I f  you could  look a t  tha t  and get  
back to  us ,  I 'd  apprecia te  i t .  
 MR.  INK:   I  wi l l ,  s i r .  
 CHAIRMAN WORTZEL:   Si r ,  thank you very  much for  your  
forbearance ,  for  shar ing your  t ime wi th  us  and your  wisdom,  and for  
your  work for  our  country  and your  agency 's  work for  our  country .  
 MR.  INK:   Thank you very  much for  the  t ime and,  again ,  thanks  
for  your  commitment  to  th is  i ssue .   I  apprecia te  i t .  
 [Whereupon,  a t  11:20 a .m. ,  the  hear ing was  adjourned. ]  
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